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          2  the appropriate people from OSHA, and we'll make

          3  sure that EPA is on board and working with us, as

          4  they have all along.

          5                 The Task Force will at least begin to

          6  meet a couple of times a week in formal structure.

          7  It will be tied into the information that's provided

          8  through the hot line that has been set up. We will

          9  track every call that comes in numerically, they

         10  will have open and closure components to it so that

         11  there is a complaint, the location, the address will

         12  be contacted. The individual person that requested

         13  the information we will provide them to.

         14                 If there is a particular issue that

         15  needs to be dealt with by an agency, the Department

         16  of Health has provided five people for that task

         17  force already, the Department of Environmental

         18  Protection have another five personnel that will be

         19  at that task force, at that hot line location, along

         20  with OEM personnel to help work out the little

         21  issues that go in terms of technology and support

         22  and coordination, that hot line site is identified.

         23  We have actually been there a number of different

         24  times already.

         25                 It's expected that when someone calls
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          2  that hot line that they'll be talking to real

          3  people. There are no tapes on that hot line, that

          4  they'll be talking to real people from those

          5  agencies.

          6                 We have question and answer formats

          7  already laid out, hopefully to answer every

          8  potential question that someone may have asked or

          9  answered.

         10                 If we can't get the answer to you,

         11  then we'll take the question and we'll get back to

         12  you with the best information we can provide.

         13                 Our goal is to get the word out.

         14  There is a lot of information here that was provided

         15  to the group that we think needs to happen, and I'm

         16  telling you that I know the people that sit on, have

         17  been working on this project for a long time, and

         18  they've been out in the streets trying to talk to

         19  people. I think we have a little bit of an

         20  information issue, and I think that's the goal, this

         21  is to fix it.

         22                 In addition to that, we will use a

         23  task force approach that includes agencies that

         24  normally may not be involved in this; for example,

         25  the New York City Department of Sanitation, as well

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            153

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  as other agencies that may roll over into one area

          3  or another in terms of clean up.

          4                 So, I believe the number is, I don't

          5  want to give you the actual number, but there is

          6  many, many agencies on the task force.

          7                 So, it's the way we coordinate

          8  things. We've done that before for the rodent task

          9  force, we've done that before for West Nile, it's

         10  something we do, the Mayor has asked us to do it.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Will the task

         12  force be publicly reporting the information that

         13  you're receiving on the calls and what the steps

         14  are?

         15                 MR. GABRIEL: I mean, that's clearly a

         16  policy decision above me, but I'll bring your

         17  concern back and I'll make sure that they get an

         18  answer to you.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Please. Thank

         20  you very much.

         21                 MR. GABRIEL: Sure.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I have some

         23  questions for the Department of Health, so I guess

         24  for Dr. Leighton.

         25                 In the testimony you gave it

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            154

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  indicated that -- well, on the chart actually, on

          3  the slide also, six or so chemicals or substances

          4  that you're testing for, asbestos, fiberglass, et

          5  cetera, but in your testimony you indicated that the

          6  results for air and dust you're making available are

          7  only for asbestos; is that correct?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: No,

          9  we will make all results available.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, okay, good.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         12  Right now they're still in the analysis phase.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: They

         15  need to have the appropriate quality assessments

         16  done on it, quality control work done on it, but

         17  ATSDR, who is assisting us in this process,

         18  anticipates that a report will be available in the

         19  spring.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         21                 In your testimony you also talked

         22  about your, I guess, support, or endorsement, if you

         23  will, of the Clinton protocol, for lack of a better

         24  description, what are the steps that need to happen

         25  now to make, to actualize that, to make the Clinton
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          2  protocol exist and go into operation?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I

          4  think that's more of a federal level activity.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I

          7  mean, standards take a long time to be set. These

          8  don't happen overnight. There's a lot of research

          9  that needs to be done, research that needs to be

         10  reviewed, what types of methods do you use to do the

         11  analysis, in terms of laboratory methods -- this is

         12  something that is not going to happen overnight, but

         13  I think that it's a worthwhile process clearly.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Let me set that

         15  aside for a second, and just stick with some more

         16  City questions, but I'll ask the federal government

         17  about that.

         18                 The testing sites, the testing you've

         19  done on the machines, et cetera, are on roofs; is

         20  that correct? The testing, the sampling you've done

         21  has been on roofs?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: Let

         23  me clarify, the Health Department is not doing

         24  sampling, except for the Indoor Air Study, which we

         25  didn't even do the sampling on. The ATSDR sent in
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          2  folks to do sampling for us. It's mostly the

          3  environmental agencies that are actually doing the

          4  testing.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: And

          7  we're actually looking at the results with them.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And then --

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: Just

         10  to answer that --

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I'll

         13  let DEC answer some of it, but I think you're

         14  referring to some of the particulate air monitors.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right. Yes.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         17  Which is a common place to put air monitors for

         18  particulate matter, and I think --

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So, some

         20  concern -- I mean, I can understand why you would

         21  put it on a roof for a number of reasons, among

         22  others, that there's space there that doesn't get in

         23  pedestrians' way, but there has been, and this is

         24  not news to you, concern that they might be more

         25  accurate or more effective if they were placed at
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          2  street level, so are any at street level? Are you

          3  considering putting them at street level?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: There

          5  are a number of different monitors out there, and

          6  you're right, the monitors that we adapted --

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry, can

          8  you just talk a little --

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: The

         10  monitors that we adapted from the existing

         11  particulate monitor network are what are known as

         12  federal reference monitors, and those are set up in

         13  accordance with national protocols so that you get

         14  reliable and comparable results out of each monitor.

         15  So, there are settings for those, and most of those

         16  are rooftop, four-story or above level. And we've

         17  expanded a number of those as well.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry, when

         19  you say you've expanded them?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: We added

         21  a number of monitors that didn't previously exist in

         22  Lower Manhattan.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: On the roofs?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: On the

         25  roofs.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: And we

          4  added a number of coarse particle and fine particle

          5  monitors so we could get more information on the --

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: How fine are

          7  the particles that -- well, what's your definition

          8  of "fine"?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Well,

         10  normal, there are currently in regulation for

         11  outdoor air, there are currently basically two

         12  particle sizes, there's everything up to 10 microns,

         13  which is referred to as PM 10, that's a more coarse

         14  particle, and we are now moving in the regulatory

         15  arena to an assessment of a finer particle that's

         16  only the fraction, it's up to 2 and 1/2 microns.

         17  That's very small, but that's considered the

         18  respirable fraction. That's a fraction that the

         19  public health folks and EPA have set as a national

         20  standard that we're going to be attaining in the

         21  coming years. But we're just in the early portions

         22  of doing that.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry. Is

         24  that larger than the.09 micrometers, that was the

         25  level in the UC Davis Test?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            159

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Yes. But

          3  it would be included in that. And what I understand

          4  --

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Explain that.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Our

          7  monitors catch everything up to 2 and 1/2 microns,

          8  but of my understanding of, without having actually,

          9  I haven't reviewed yet the UC Davis stuff, was that

         10  he did a much smaller fraction.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: And

         13  Kathy can speak more to additional monitors. There

         14  was street level monitoring done as well.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry, I

         16  got onto another issue, so one sec.

         17                 So, there was street level monitoring

         18  done, but now presently all the monitors are on the

         19  roofs; is that what you just said?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I

         21  think it depends on the substance that you're

         22  talking about.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: There

         24  are some monitors, the perimeter monitors I alluded

         25  to in my testimony are at street level.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, great.

          3  Thank you. I'm sorry, Commissioner Callahan, who I

          4  thought for a second we might be related, but you

          5  tragically don't have a G in Callahan, as my mother

          6  did, and I do in my middle name. But nonetheless --

          7                 MS. CALLAHAN: I just want to go back

          8  to the question of the University of California

          9  Study. Those particles below .9 are called

         10  ultra-fine --

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         12                 MS. CALLAHAN: -- In a sort of

         13  technical categorization.

         14                 We have not measured for ultra-fine.

         15  Although, as Carl I think was alluding to, the

         16  nature of ultra-fines is such that sometimes they

         17  kind of coagulate and the 2.5 monitors can capture

         18  them in a form. But the basic thing with ultra-fines

         19  is, there isn't a sufficient body of data at this

         20  point in the scientific community that says we have

         21  to understand the health impacts of these ultra fine

         22  particles. We understand how they behave in the

         23  atmosphere, and, so, we don't have any standards as

         24  a result of that.

         25                 It is an area that EPA continually
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          2  looks at as it reviews data and scientific studies

          3  to change, consider changing the standards that are

          4  in place.

          5                 The most recently sort of published

          6  EPA position on this was a draft document in March

          7  of 2000, and there will be an update in I believe

          8  the end of April of this year, and the finding was

          9  that there still was not a sufficient body of

         10  scientific agreement and data that said these very

         11  ultrafine particles clearly create specific health

         12  impacts.

         13                 It's an area that's going to continue

         14  to be looked at and researched. But because it's an

         15  area that's still under research, in an emergency

         16  response situation, it's not what we start to look

         17  for.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Is there

         19  anything that the federal government is considering

         20  doing to increase the level of, in kind of an

         21  emergency way, get some perhaps extra research

         22  dollars out there so some research could be done in

         23  an expedited matter so we could have the scientific

         24  information so we could determine very quickly

         25  whether this is something that should be added into
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          2  our emergency response?

          3                 Just cause I guess I understand what

          4  you're saying, and you have to go by the data, you

          5  know, that you have, you seem to indicate a valid

          6  concern. So, if there's a way we can figure out

          7  whether it is something we should be very concerned

          8  about more quickly, that obviously would be useful

          9  as opposed to if just in science and the natural

         10  course of things indicates that ten years from now

         11  and there's nothing that could actually be done to

         12  kind of help the folks, or less could be done.

         13                 MS. CALLAHAN: I suspect as a result

         14  of what's going on with the World Trade Center, that

         15  there will be any number of priority research

         16  projects or areas that will receive increased

         17  funding.

         18                 I mean, I don't think all that's been

         19  determined, the principle focus of funding has been

         20  on recovery for Lower Manhattan and I think we'll

         21  move into the issues of registries for tracking

         22  people and sort of dealing with some of our

         23  continuing problems or concerns with indoor

         24  environments. But I have no doubt that these are

         25  research areas that are going to get attention in
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          2  the future. And certainly from an EPA perspective we

          3  will continue to make it a high priority.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And for the EPA

          5  making it a high priority, does that mean that there

          6  would be an increase in the EPA's funding of this

          7  research? What does that actually translate into?

          8                 MS. CALLAHAN: I can't translate it

          9  for you right now.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         11                 MS. CALLAHAN: Because as I said, the

         12  more immediate priorities tend to be how do we

         13  recover downtown.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         15                 MS. CALLAHAN: And I think, though, as

         16  a follow-up, research areas are going to come out of

         17  that also. So, you know, while I don't have dollar

         18  figures, while I can't translate it to that first,

         19  other things are sort of more high on the priority

         20  list.

         21                 I think it's coming, and it will be a

         22  part of the normal review.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You know, I'm

         24  interested, and I don't want to take too much time

         25  on this, in perhaps having some follow-up
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          2  discussions with the appropriate agencies, you know,

          3  in my role as Health Committee Chair to see what,

          4  not in a way that would take attention away from the

          5  immediate disaster recovery, but to try to find a

          6  way where the Health Committee and others could be

          7  useful in generating whatever support, or whatever

          8  is necessary to in addition get resources out there

          9  and perhaps they should go to scientists, you know,

         10  not government scientists, other scientists.

         11                 MS. CALLAHAN: And typically it would

         12  be a scientist outside of the government --

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         14                 MS. CALLAHAN: And we'd be glad to

         15  cooperate in that effort.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. So, if we

         17  could do that so we could try to, you know really

         18  have a sense, because I think, obviously, this is

         19  something that is of tremendous concern for folks.

         20                 My last question, and then I guess

         21  I'll go on a second round, if we have one, is I

         22  guess, I think back to the Department of Health, but

         23  I could be wrong about that, I have been on a

         24  couple.

         25                 In your testimony you said that
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          2  between two and three-hundred notices of violation

          3  were given out to vehicles who didn't do the proper

          4  tarping or et cetera.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: Yes.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That seems like

          7  a large number to me, but I actually don't know how

          8  many vehicles come in and out, so it might not be a

          9  large number.

         10                 So, one, kind of, is that a large

         11  number? And two, what are we doing to -- are there

         12  fines that happen? Do those truck companies then get

         13  banned from going into the World Trade Center area

         14  because they're not following? How are we addressing

         15  the steps to make sure, you know, that doesn't

         16  occur?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I

         18  cannot answer the question about the total number of

         19  trucks.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: So I

         22  will let Bob do that.

         23                 MR. ADAMS: Yes. As you saw in the

         24  testimony, we were running about 6,000 loads. That

         25  was at peak, now we're at about 1,400. That might
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          2  average to, that could be anywhere --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can you please

          4  identify yourself.

          5                 MR. ADAMS: Oh, I'm sorry. I'm Robert

          6  Adams, with the Department of Design and

          7  Construction.

          8                 You know, we probably have anywhere

          9  from 20 to maybe 50 trucks a day making constant

         10  circuits back and forth. At that time that seemed

         11  like a lot, but a lot of the things that we had with

         12  this, and there were fines associated with this, by

         13  the way, several trucking companies received those

         14  fines, and they were obligated to respond back to

         15  that, which they did. And I don't know what the

         16  actual dollar penalties were, but it may seem like

         17  it's a lot but actually, you think about the number

         18  of loads, because 300 times, but every day each one

         19  of those trucks may go through a process, you know,

         20  20, 30, 40, 50 times, depending on how many circuits

         21  they make up and down.

         22                 So, it seems like it's a lot, but in

         23  actuality, if you look at the number of loads we run

         24  everyday, it's not a very large number at all.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: My colleague,
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          2  Council Member Golden, just showed me, I think it

          3  was your testimony, you have a three strikes and

          4  you're out policy with these truck companies?

          5                 MR. ADAMS: Well, the three strikes is

          6  really for employee violations of safety rules.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          8                 MR. ADAMS: You know, it would

          9  probably be extended.

         10                 We also have the DEC police also

         11  enforce the rules, because the New York State

         12  Department of Environmental Conservation also has

         13  rules on tarping, so they also enforce that as well.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And is there

         15  communication between the two agencies on, you know,

         16  if I got two violations from a City agency and one

         17  violation from the state, would you each know that,

         18  so then I would be out?

         19                 MR. ADAMS: I don't know the answer to

         20  that particular question, but the DEC police and

         21  Department of Health representatives attend regular

         22  meetings together with us, so I would think that if

         23  there was knowledge that they would share amongst

         24  themselves, that, yes, we've had a problem with this

         25  particular vehicle, or this particular company.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Maybe if we

          3  could put that on the agenda for the task force to

          4  look at, because, obviously we've seen tragically

          5  that there are people who are acting in, you know,

          6  really immoral and unscrupulous ways as it relates

          7  to doing business around Ground Zero and then get

          8  back to the Council as to what the coordination is

          9  going to be on that.

         10                 MR. ADAMS: I'd be glad to do that.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         13  you, Council Member Quinn.

         14                 Council Member Gerson.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Thank you.

         16  Thank you, all.

         17                 Okay, let's see.

         18                 Deputy Commissioner Gabriel, thank

         19  you for remaining, and your announcement about the

         20  task force --

         21                 MR. GABRIEL: Thank you for promoting

         22  me. Deputy Director.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Oh, okay.

         24                 MR. GABRIEL: I appreciate that,

         25  though.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            169

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: If you get rid

          3  of the barge, I'm happy to promote you.

          4                 MR. GABRIEL: Thank you, sir.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Let me ask you

          6  this on this task force, would it not be a good idea

          7  if a member or a representative of the local

          8  community serve or joined the task force, especially

          9  in view of all the communication issues that we've

         10  heard?

         11                 MR. GABRIEL: Let me just say two

         12  things about that. One of the things we need to do

         13  is do communication. And in terms of the structure

         14  of the task force, if we want to bring somebody in

         15  on the outside, and that really relates to the

         16  policy, I will make sure I run it up and we'll let

         17  you know.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Could you,

         19  please?

         20                 And, you know, when you say from the

         21  outside, it's hard for me to fathom that those of us

         22  who have lived through this and are living through

         23  this day in and day out --

         24                 MR. GABRIEL: I know, sir, I'm there

         25  too.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: We're really

          3  not from the outside.

          4                 MR. GABRIEL: From the community.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Okay. And I

          6  think we really may have some insight to offer that

          7  would facilitate in the spirit of partnership that

          8  you express.

          9                 MR. GABRIEL: Well, let me see, and

         10  I'll get back to you directly on it.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Okay, thank

         12  you very much.

         13                 Now, in the spirit of going forward,

         14  as you all have said, let me just start off and make

         15  sure we're all kind of on the same page.

         16                 I take it no one would disagree with

         17  the proposition that in the aftermath of September

         18  11th, that asbestos, fiber, in all probability

         19  landed within residential and business apartment and

         20  work units, including air vents and air conditioning

         21  systems.

         22                 You don't have to say anything.

         23  Unless you disagree, don't say anything. Okay.

         24                 And I take it no one disagrees that

         25  it's a good idea, let me rephrase it, that it would
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          2  be imperative to remove or dislodge the fiber that

          3  has landed within the air systems and the air vents

          4  and the nooks and crannies of apartments, that that

          5  is a good idea to remove fiber that has landed and

          6  may have landed and accumulated at levels of beyond

          7  what was normal prior or what was background prior

          8  to September 11th. No one would disagree with that?

          9  Good.

         10                 And I take it we're going to hear

         11  expert testimony later on that even if initial

         12  exposures were not damaging to health, that as

         13  asbestos fiber remains, or gets recirculated and

         14  increases the probability of repeat inhalation, that

         15  the risk, especially among children, but the risk of

         16  the general population increases over time, if

         17  there's an ongoing exposure to fiber that remains in

         18  place and may get kicked up, you know, repeatedly

         19  over time. No one would disagree with that?

         20                 Good. Okay. So, with that as our

         21  predicate -- oh, and the last thing, several of you

         22  referred to the need for monitoring and dust

         23  suppression on an ongoing basis, because as the

         24  debris continues to be removed, then dust continues

         25  to be kicked up into the air, and could continue to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            172

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  land in apartments and units, and therefore no one

          3  would disagree that until we really finish the

          4  operation we need to remain vigilant, we need to

          5  have ongoing monitoring and ongoing steps to clean

          6  up, and special steps to clean up and remove fiber

          7  or dust that we should presume includes hazardous

          8  fiber. No one disagrees with that?

          9                 All right, good. So, that's a good

         10  start.

         11                 Then with that in mind, let's start

         12  with the barge and the removal operation. And has

         13  there been, Deputy Director, has there been or can

         14  you describe what type of analysis took place within

         15  the city to ascertain the -- or maybe this is DDC,

         16  I'll let you all decide who should answer these

         17  questions, but I'm curious to know what analysis

         18  took place, or is currently taking place to identify

         19  alternatives to the current Pier 25 site?

         20                 MR. ADAMS: I'm probably not going to

         21  be able to address all the specific issues. We have

         22  looked at some of the alternatives. For example, one

         23  of the alternatives would have been to truck all the

         24  debris. Obviously, I don't think I need to expand

         25  upon the potential risk associated with adding
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          2  additional trucking and we did for a long time truck

          3  a lot of debris to Staten Island. We really tied up

          4  the Battery Tunnel, and the BQE as a result of that

          5  process. It became clear that the most efficient

          6  operation that we had available to us was to use the

          7  barge operation.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Did you ever

          9  look into or evaluate any sites other than a site

         10  that is in immediate proximity to three elementary

         11  schools a couple of middle and high schools and

         12  directly opposite a 1,300 residential unit; were any

         13  other sites even evaluated?

         14                 MR. ADAMS: Other sites were

         15  evaluated.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Which ones?

         17                 MR. ADAMS: I couldn't tell you which

         18  ones. I don't know.

         19                 For example, I know we did use

         20  Hamilton as a site at one time. That, again, is

         21  trucking over to Brooklyn. We, of course, had Pier 6

         22  which we used, but again because of its size. There

         23  were some sites uptown, up north that were also

         24  considered, but, again, they all added the problem

         25  of additional trucking that would have had to have
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          2  been done.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I believe the

          4  community had identified potential alternative sites

          5  that were not adjacent to residential areas that

          6  were relatively downtown. But, rather, can you get

          7  back to me with a list of --

          8                 MR. ADAMS: I will ask that a list of

          9  all sites evaluated be provided.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: All right.

         11                 But now going forward, and I take it

         12  from the Commissioner Sheirer's testimony, it's

         13  still your goal to shut down the barge as soon as

         14  possible. That remains a goal?

         15                 MR. ADAMS: We concur completely. The

         16  sooner we can complete the barge operation, we'll

         17  all feel a lot better about the situation.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: In the

         19  meantime, I'm wondering what steps we can implement

         20  immediately, and let me through some thoughts at

         21  you. We've heard testimony that we're ahead of

         22  schedule and clean-up, that the number of loads has

         23  been decreased, but yet we're going to hear

         24  testimony later today that there remains a constant

         25  cycle of trucks coming and going, and that, in fact,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            175

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  though, increasingly those trucks are only partially

          3  full. But even if they're only partially full, they

          4  still have the diesel and they're still very dusty,

          5  so I'm wondering if in view of the progress you have

          6  stated, is it possible to maybe cut down on the

          7  number of trips, take more time with each load to

          8  make sure the trucks are fully and properly sealed,

          9  and maybe restrict the hours of debris operation so

         10  it's not during school hours, and it's not during

         11  late night hours? I mean, it seems to me that would

         12  save, in addition to helping the people who live

         13  there it would also save the City some money.

         14                 MR. ADAMS: I think we'd have to look

         15  at all those scenarios. Please understand that the

         16  removal of debris is critical to the effective

         17  recovery operations which still take place. There is

         18  still tremendous number of remains that have not

         19  been found yet.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I understand.

         21  But we have pictures of trucks that are a quarter

         22  filled or whatnot, and ironically those may even be

         23  more dusty because they're not full, they're not --

         24                 MR. ADAMS: I'll have to look into

         25  that particularly, because it's my understanding

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            176

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  that trucks aren't supposed to be leaving partially

          3  full. They are supposed to be full.

          4                 The only thing that might be limiting

          5  some of the types of debris that we load into those

          6  trucks may prevent us from completely filling them.

          7  But let me take that back to our operations people.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Will you get

          9  back to me as soon as possible?

         10                 MR. ADAMS: Sure.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Now, also, the

         12  sealing of the trucks, I know there's been topping

         13  and there's been covering, but it's never been

         14  hermetically sealed, and in an airtight way. And

         15  we're going to hear testimony later on that in fact

         16  federal law requires that the trucking or the

         17  movement of hazardous material demands hermetic

         18  seal. Why has that not been done? Can it be done?

         19                 MR. ADAMS: Well, I would take

         20  exception to the classification that this is

         21  hazardous material, this is construction debris.

         22  This is not hazardous material.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: But we know it

         24  contains asbestos fiber.

         25                 But wait, we know it contains
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          2  asbestos fiber, don't we? We agree on that. We all

          3  agree on that. No one disagreed on that. And

          4  asbestos fiber by federal law is a hazardous

          5  substance.

          6                 Well, let me, putting aside the legal

          7  issue, it's unfair for me to ask you for a legal

          8  opinion, but putting aside the legal issue, why -- I

          9  mean, I've seen those trucks, they're covered with a

         10  tarp, you know, you can also see the debris through

         11  the side and it comes out, and that's natural. Why

         12  can't we, especially now, maybe initially there were

         13  issues, but in the spirit of going forward, why

         14  can't we tomorrow add in the extra step to make sure

         15  there is an airtight seal, that there is nothing

         16  that is even visible so no dust can come out along

         17  the route?

         18                 MR. ADAMS: We'll take that back and

         19  talk to the feasibility of doing that in this

         20  particular case.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Okay, you'll

         22  get back to me on that, as well?

         23                 MS. CALLAHAN: Can I add one thing

         24  that I think is --

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I was going to
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          2  ask you a question next, so go ahead.

          3                 MS. CALLAHAN: Good. Perfect.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Go ahead.

          5                 MS. CALLAHAN: That the monitoring

          6  data that we have in terms of asbestos in the air is

          7  telling us that we're not having exceedences very

          8  frequently. In fact, more and more we're finding

          9  that we're not getting any fibers whatsoever.

         10                 So, that's the good news.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Okay.

         12                 MS. CALLAHAN: I mean, you want best

         13  management practices to whatever degree you can get

         14  them, but so far the news is that they've been

         15  working pretty effectively.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Okay. So,

         17  let's talk about that good news. And I look good

         18  news. And, you know, again, I want to go forward, I

         19  don't want to repeat myself, we all recognize this

         20  is an unprecedented disaster, and all of your

         21  agencies responded to the immediacy of the disaster,

         22  but the residents of downtown are frustrated,

         23  because we're the residents who not only lived

         24  through it, we gave food and we gave water to the

         25  rescue workers, we assisted in every which way we
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          2  could, but, yet, it doesn't seem that the health and

          3  needs of the people who are living through this are

          4  given the priority that now certainly there's no

          5  excuse not to give a priority to.

          6                 So, along those lines, let me ask

          7  you, is anyone familiar with recent readings of

          8  elevated lead levels in the vicinity? When I say

          9  recent, as recent as last month? Has anyone heard

         10  about any of that, elevated lead levels beyond

         11  ambient standards, specifically within proximity to

         12  some of the schools? Are you familiar with that?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I am

         14  familiar with it.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Well, while

         16  you answer, let me just ask, because not everyone

         17  else is, could I ask the Sergeant-At-Arms to

         18  distribute I think copies of the lead results

         19  recently?

         20                 And these are results, these are

         21  readings that have been taken by the contractors

         22  retained by the Board of Education, which shows that

         23  on occasion, as recently as last month, lead levels

         24  have been above standard acceptable levels.

         25                 And my question, if you're familiar

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            180

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  with it, I would point out, it may not show on the

          3  chart, but we will have testimony which will show

          4  that those readings were taken on the size of the

          5  schools that are facing the barge, that are closest

          6  to the barge, and, so, my question would be, would

          7  that not indicate that something at the barge

          8  operation is contributing to elevated lead levels?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I

         10  will answer that question in part. You know, I don't

         11  have at my fingertips all the lead results taken at

         12  the site in the bulk and in the air, but for the

         13  most part, lead at the site has not been one of the

         14  substances that we were very concerned about because

         15  there were not huge amounts of lead in at the site,

         16  in the air or in the bulk dust. And EPA could

         17  probably address that better.

         18                 But I think more importantly --

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Could those

         20  readings come from the diesel, though? From diesel

         21  from the trucks? Could that explain it?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: We

         23  could get back to you on that, but the thought is

         24  people don't think so here.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Do you have
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          2  any thoughts as to what explains those readings?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: Yes,

          4  actually.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Go ahead.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: This

          7  is New York City. New York City has a huge amount of

          8  lead just in the soil, in the street dust, from

          9  interior, exterior use of lead-based paint that

         10  still exists in our environment, as well as from

         11  gasoline that was around.

         12                 We have looked at lead in street dust

         13  ourselves from in the past, and we see levels that

         14  are above standards. This is not an uncommon thing

         15  to find.

         16                 That being said, it's not something

         17  that we want to find, and I think that to clean up

         18  lead in schools, to clean up lead in homes, requires

         19  the same methods that we've been recommending for

         20  the asbestos clean-up.

         21                 There was some, you know, I don't

         22  know what all the levels were, but there were some

         23  levels that exceeded standards I know on

         24  windowsills.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: On the
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          2  windowsills on the side of the barge. Those were the

          3  windowsills tested?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

          5  Right. And those are areas that we don't have

          6  background levels for those areas in a normal

          7  situation.

          8                 So, we don't know what the

          9  background, even absent all the World Trade Center

         10  exposures, which we don't think there was a huge

         11  amount of lead exposure based on the sampling

         12  results that EPA has obtained at this point.

         13                 So, to me, personally, and I've done

         14  lead poisoning issues for many years, I think this

         15  is something that has come from New York City air,

         16  unfortunately, and New York City street dust.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Are you

         18  willing to rule out the possibility that this could

         19  come from operations associated with the barge,

         20  either the trucks or the debris?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         22  Because I'm not sure about the diesel stuff, I don't

         23  know. I think it's probably less likely than just

         24  being something from New York City air.

         25                 But I'm not willing to rule anything
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          2  out, because we don't have a cause, a definitive

          3  tie, between what caused the elevated levels on the

          4  windowsills in this situation.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Would it be a

          6  good idea to, as a matter of prudent precaution, to

          7  try and switch to a non-diesel, non-lead fuel as

          8  soon as possible with those trucks that make the

          9  rounds one after another after another?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I

         11  think that it is something that is definitely being

         12  looked at and discussed among the agencies.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: But do you

         14  think it's a good idea? Is it a good idea?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         16  Personally I think it's probably a good idea. I also

         17  think that, you know, we do have a lot of traffic on

         18  that West Side Highway in general.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Well, not now.

         20  Now it's closed.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: Not

         22  now. That's the point. I mean, you know --

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Right.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Mr.

         25  Chairman, I think we indicated before that we
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          2  certainly would be willing to look at that. There

          3  were a number of obstacles that had to be overcome,

          4  but we were certainly trying to address those

          5  issues.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And you'll get

          7  back to us?

          8                 Well, my last question on this point,

          9  and one more --

         10                 MS. CALLAHAN: Can I just make one

         11  more clarification?

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Yes.

         13                 MS. CALLAHAN: I don't think lead is

         14  an issue in the fuel, I mean there are other

         15  contaminants of issue, but not lead.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I understand

         17  that.

         18                 MS. CALLAHAN: Oh, okay.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: But lead has

         20  been --

         21                 MS. CALLAHAN: No, I understand it's

         22  an issue, but I just wanted to clarify the fuel.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: No, I'm sorry.

         24  In the interest of time I'm trying to plough through

         25  quickly, but there's lead, there's diesel, there's
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          2  asbestos. But the idea of switching to the

          3  non-diesel fuel, I think one of you had testified

          4  that there are some road blocks, and I'm just

          5  curious, it seems to me -- what are those road

          6  blocks and why can't we overcome them, since we're

          7  talking about trucks going continually past places

          8  where kids go to school in their parks?

          9                 MR. GABRIEL: Well, I apologize for

         10  glossing over that a little bit before, and I

         11  obviously can see your interest. I will reiterate

         12  what Ms. Callahan says, that I can't think of a

         13  relationship between the fuel and the lead issue.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I understand.

         15  I said we're switching issues.

         16                 MR. GABRIEL: Yes, that's fine.

         17                 We began, as we started to look at

         18  this and became, got off of the day-to-day emergency

         19  stuff and started really focusing in on reducing the

         20  impacts from the operations, we started looking at

         21  how we could do that, specifically reducing the

         22  impacts from the trucking and the clean-up

         23  operations at the site.

         24                 New York State and Region II EPA

         25  brought in a multi-state group that had some
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          2  experience with this, the Northeast States for

          3  Coordinated Areas Management, we're a member of that

          4  organization, and they had had experience with

          5  Boston's Big Dig, the highway underground there,

          6  that was a planned situation, and the experience was

          7  limited, but what they had done in that case was in

          8  a number of locations they had been able to put

          9  particulate traps onto trucks that were dedicated to

         10  the site, and they had also added for vehicles that

         11  aren't trucks, for things like cranes and bulldozers

         12  and things that particulate traps don't work for,

         13  they've gone to some other technologies, to show

         14  whether that was feasible or not.

         15                 The key to those technologies is the

         16  ultra low sulfur diesel. None of them work unless

         17  you have that fuel. However, you have to be

         18  dedicated to that fuel, that's the only fuel you can

         19  use, as little as one tank of a higher sulfur diesel

         20  fuel will basically void the games that you've

         21  gotten from those particulate traps.

         22                 One of the hurdles that we have

         23  gotten through is, you are correct, the MTA has

         24  advanced, and will have by 2003, I believe, all that

         25  its vehicles will either be natural gas fueled or on

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            187

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  the ultra low sulfur diesel with a particulate trap,

          3  and they're moving forward with that.

          4                 But there is only one ultra low

          5  sulfur diesel supplier in the New York market right

          6  now, Spreg Energy in New Jersey, is the only fuel

          7  supplier that even has that available.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: So, it's just

          9  a question of getting the supplier from him and then

         10  we can do it? Is that --

         11                 MR. GABRIEL: Part of it is supply,

         12  and part of it is who controls the trucks and where

         13  they come from. And one of the issues in

         14  construction, unfortunately, is that contractors

         15  don't own their own trucks. The trucks are all

         16  subcontracted, you get different trucks coming in

         17  from day-to-day.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: The City can

         19  require it, can't it?

         20                 If the fuel is available, can't the

         21  City require its use?

         22                 MR. GABRIEL: Again, the fuel and the

         23  technology go hand-in-hand, and we've been trying to

         24  focus on getting the technology on vehicles that are

         25  going to be staying at the site, rather than trying
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          2  to get it on a truck that may only be there for a

          3  day or a week.

          4                 I mean, truly, Mr. Adams can speak to

          5  that better, but the trucking contractors, in

          6  particular, are very tough to get at.

          7                 We have been focusing on that now,

          8  we've had a number of meetings with the State and

          9  the City agencies, and everyone has been very

         10  interested and cooperative in moving this forward.

         11                 We're also working with the

         12  contractors to try to assure them of this because

         13  it's a brave new world for them. It's something that

         14  they have not gotten into before, and there is a

         15  meeting going on, in fact, today, with NESCOM and a

         16  couple of the contractors, to try to move this

         17  forward, not just for the remaining life of the

         18  recovery operation, but as we go forward with other

         19  operations in the City, possibly for the rebuild,

         20  possibly for other purposes in the future, everyone

         21  is very interested in this as part of our general

         22  effort to reduce particulate.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: What is your

         24  time line? When do you think we'll reach closure? I

         25  mean, if the technology is available, we're not
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          2  talking about inventing something new, and the

          3  supply is available, we're talking about getting the

          4  trucks with the right technology to the site and

          5  getting the fuel. It sounds like it's a management

          6  issue, not a scientific issue. So, when do you think

          7  we'll be able to do it? A week, a month, a year?

          8                 MR. GABRIEL: I don't really have an

          9  answer on that, because to get at those trucks would

         10  require using one dedicated fleet trucks, which

         11  isn't all we've had available to us.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: You'll keep us

         13  apprised?

         14                 MR. GABRIEL: Absolutely.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Okay, two last

         16  very quick questions, and then very specific.

         17                 To EPA, you talked about the ultra

         18  fine particles not being measured down here. We

         19  know, and you will hear testimony later, that EPA

         20  has measured ultra fine particles of asbestos and

         21  other fibers elsewhere in the country, in other

         22  situations; could you explain to my constituents why

         23  the discrepancy, why you would measure it elsewhere

         24  and not here in Lower Manhattan?

         25                 MS. CALLAHAN: I'm not aware of those
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          2  circumstances, so it would be hard for me --

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Ninety-six and

          4  --

          5                 MS. CALLAHAN: So, if you can provide

          6  me with some information on that, I can look into

          7  it. But the fact is we did not measure for them. We

          8  do believe that they are part of a research arena,

          9  so maybe the other circumstances where EPA measured

         10  for them, you know, sort of were more compatible

         11  with a long-term evaluation. I'd have to look at the

         12  specifics for you.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: All right.

         14  Well, we'll get back to you.

         15                 In the interest of time I'll just

         16  conclude with a request. You said you would get back

         17  to me on the dust abatement procedures, please also

         18  add to it the noise abatement and the possibility of

         19  limiting time of the noisy crane dropping operations

         20  so it doesn't go into the wee hours, and also the

         21  possibility of rubberization.

         22                 And, secondly, as you will get back

         23  to me on the lead sources, please keep in mind that

         24  we, again, in the interest of time, we know there

         25  are lead sources that were present in the World
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          2  Trade Center site, so if you would get back to us on

          3  that evaluation, please keep us apprised of the

          4  results. Please conduct the appropriate analysis and

          5  keep us apprised.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: Can

          7  I just make one statement? That I think the

          8  standards that are on the sheets that you've

          9  distributed are not correct for all situations.

         10                 The 40 micrograms per square foot is

         11  for floors on interiors. Windowsills, the levels are

         12  250 micrograms per square foot. On window wells,

         13  it's 400.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: You know,

         15  we're going to have testimony on this later, then we

         16  can get back to you. But these are Board of

         17  Education measurements and standards, so if there's

         18  a problem with it, if there's something wrong with

         19  what's going on internally, but let's hear that

         20  testimony and we can get back to you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         22  Council Member Gerson.

         23                 Council Member Bill DeBlasio.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Just one

         25  question. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 Just one question. I want to direct

          3  this to Assistant Commissioner Leighton, perhaps

          4  also the DEP representatives would speak to it.

          5                 First, Assistant Commissioner, I

          6  appreciate your testimony. I appreciate that your

          7  daughter attends one of the schools affected and

          8  you're on the front line, that certainly is

          9  meaningful to me, and I'm a very big fan of your new

         10  Commissioner, so the question is not meant to be

         11  critical, it is meant to be how to we fix the

         12  problem together.

         13                 In Brownstone Brooklyn, which is

         14  represented by David Yassky and I, as well as Angel

         15  Rodriguez, we don't pretend to have anywhere near

         16  the immediate problems of Lower Manhattan, but I

         17  think there's a deep concern. We all felt the debris

         18  falling upon us that day, and felt the smoke for

         19  many days after, and I'm just confused because the

         20  testing figures that were shown earlier, I know

         21  those were largely DEP, but beyond the question of

         22  the indoor versus the outdoor, it seems like maybe

         23  there hasn't been enough indoor, there hasn't been

         24  enough of the superfine particles, but I'm also

         25  concerned there hasn't been enough inner Brooklyn.
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          2                 And I'm concerned, can you just

          3  clarify what has been done? Because that seems to be

          4  the next most affected area because of the wind

          5  patterns those days; what has been done to test, and

          6  what has been done to continue to test going

          7  forward?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

          9  Council Member DeBlasio, Bob Avaltroni, DEP.

         10                 As I suggested, we were vigilant in

         11  our efforts because we did know that it obviously

         12  affected downtown Manhattan. We set up air monitors

         13  in the five boroughs. We left those up, in fact I

         14  was second-guessed in terms of how long we left them

         15  up. And we extended the use of those air monitors.

         16  So, we did everything that we could possibly do

         17  knowing that -- and as you said, you have the wind,

         18  the perception again is that it was blowing from

         19  west to east, and every test that we took in the

         20  outer boroughs came back that we were within

         21  acceptable limits.

         22                 But that being said, it does not

         23  negate our ability to work with you, if you have

         24  concerns in the future. Because, again, this is a

         25  situation where we fully understand that what the
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          2  people in Lower Manhattan feel -- what we see, and I

          3  think somebody pointed to this before, this has

          4  become an issue that has taken on great lengths to

          5  go not only outside of Lower Manhattan into the

          6  other boroughs, but across the nation.

          7                 We are willing to work with you. As I

          8  said, we have a Mayor who is very vigilant in his

          9  efforts, and has given us a mandate to ensure that

         10  the public is safe.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Just

         12  finally, I just want to say, I think more public

         13  education, much more intense public education, I

         14  know the vast majority of my constituents are

         15  concerned and really still don't know where to turn,

         16  and particularly on the indoor question. So, I

         17  really would like to redouble on that front.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We

         20  would be happy to work with you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         24  Council Member DeBlasio.

         25                 Council Member Yassky.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you. I

          3  would also want to welcome you, Assistant

          4  Commissioner Leighton, and thank you for your help

          5  in arranging an informational forum for my

          6  constituents, or they were not yet my constituents,

          7  but in the fall prior to taking office.

          8                 But I want to echo what Council

          9  Member DeBlasio has said about the testing in

         10  Brooklyn.

         11                 I know that you know that on

         12  September 11th, because the winds were blowing

         13  toward Brooklyn throughout the day particles and

         14  dust were falling.

         15                 I mean, there was a thick layer, a

         16  thick coating of dust on the cars and the sidewalks

         17  in Brooklyn, and a constituent of mine in Park Slope

         18  in fact a day or two later found a shred of an

         19  envelope from the World Trade Center that had been

         20  blown that far. And I think that, I guess if I

         21  understand your answer to that question, they were

         22  air monitoring, you had air monitoring in Brooklyn,

         23  but you have not done any testing for particles, and

         24  contaminants that may have settled onto the ground;

         25  is that correct?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We had

          3  air monitors in existence for asbestos, and that was

          4  the responsibility that DEP had.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Has any other

          6  testing been done for elevated levels of

          7  contaminants that may have settled on the ground on

          8  September 11th during the day or two after?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: There

         10  were existing monitors as well for particulate

         11  matter that had been in place already, and

         12  obviously, we did schools, as I alluded to before in

         13  my presentation.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And what did

         15  the particulate matter monitoring show in Brownstone

         16  Brooklyn?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I guess

         18  the State and EPA probably can speak to that better.

         19                 There are three PM 2.5 federal

         20  reference monitors located in Brooklyn, and I have a

         21  map, I apologize I don't have it large enough to

         22  really show, but we have one in the Northern end at

         23  Junior High School 126, we have another one sort of

         24  central, PS 321 and we have another one farther

         25  south at PS 314.
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          2                 Generally, as I said before, we have

          3  seen -- we saw early after the attack relatively

          4  elevated particulate levels throughout the City,

          5  especially in Manhattan, and we have seen the

          6  particulate numbers come down over time, as we would

          7  expect them to.

          8                 We've also seen that it's been

          9  relatively uniform throughout that time at the

         10  monitors throughout the City locations. And what we

         11  take that to mean is that the relative influence of

         12  the Trade Center on the particulate state of the air

         13  in New York City has not been all that strong past

         14  the early weeks of the attack. Since then we're

         15  really back to our background concentrations of air.

         16                 I do not believe that we did any

         17  direct asbestos sampling in Brooklyn, unless EPA can

         18  tell -- EPA says that we did.

         19                 MS. CALLAHAN: I'm confident what we

         20  did was put asbestos on monitors co-located with the

         21  particulate monitors.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So that would

         23  have been at 321 and the other locations you

         24  mentioned?

         25                 MS. CALLAHAN: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: The gentleman

          3  sitting next to Assistant Commissioner Leighton, I'm

          4  sorry, I don't   remember your name?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

          6  Deputy Commissioner Avaltroni. Bob Avaltroni.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: You said that

          8  the asbestos monitoring in Brooklyn showed no

          9  elevated levels?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         11  and I also, what I wanted to say to you, if you feel

         12  there is an issue right now, we would be happy to go

         13  out and observe and see if we can take a bulk

         14  sample.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, then, I,

         16  along with Council Member DeBlasio, will take you up

         17  on the invitation to pursue this and see what, if

         18  anything, needs to be done in addition.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We'd

         20  be happy to do that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 Council Member Golden.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chairman.

          4                 I want to thank all of the different

          5  managers from City, State and federal government

          6  here today for staying here as long as you have and

          7  going through this testimony, and we greatly

          8  appreciate it.

          9                 Since you've been here so long, I

         10  want to be brief, and try to be quick and get you

         11  out of here, I think I'm one of the last to speak

         12  today.

         13                 I know that Commissioner from OEM, he

         14  couldn't answer this question, and possibly you

         15  can't answer it either, but you could probably give

         16  us a rough estimate. I know it's been asked before,

         17  I just want to ask it again.

         18                 We realize that 90 percent, or better

         19  than 90 percent of this has been removed. We know

         20  that we've done that in six months. We know that

         21  we've reduced the number of trucks per day from

         22  6,000 to 1,400.

         23                 On the number of trucks that we're

         24  using today, with the amount that's left to be

         25  removed, are we looking at a window, not an
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          2  approximation, and I'm going to look to you, Mr.

          3  Adams, I think to come up -- I think if anybody else

          4  can help on this answer, please help Mr. Adams.

          5                 Are we looking at a 30-day window,

          6  60-day window, 90-day window? And I don't think

          7  we're looking much past that; could you give us an

          8  educated answer without being held to it? We're not

          9  going to hold you to that date?

         10                 MR. ADAMS: And I think unfortunately

         11  I would have to say it wouldn't be a very educated

         12  guess at all. There are so many other factors that

         13  have to be considered in terms of the remaining

         14  debris. Some of it is just the way it collapsed.

         15  Some of it we can't move right now because there are

         16  other operations taking place.

         17                 For example, we're trying to retain

         18  the slurry wall, the foundation wall that surrounds

         19  the site, and moving some of that debris before that

         20  retention of the slurry wall would not be a wise

         21  idea because it could cause a failure or a partial

         22  failure, so we wouldn't want to do that.

         23                 So, to give you a window, yes, you

         24  may look at it and say, yes, 90 percent of it is

         25  done now, but, you know, it's kind of, taking the
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          2  last five pounds off, you know, that could be most

          3  of the effort. I really wouldn't want to get into

          4  putting any kind of a -- even a wide -- let me put

          5  it this way: we're not going to be there for another

          6  year, we're definitely going to be finished before

          7  that. I am certain that we will be finished before

          8  September 11th, 2002, but to narrow it down any more

          9  than that right now, because there's so many other

         10  factors, and the engineering staff that is there is

         11  constantly monitoring how the debris has moved and

         12  shifted. And if something happens, we may have to

         13  refocus how we begin that debris removal, or change

         14  our tactic to debris removal. So, that's really

         15  critical.

         16                 The other factor, of course, is the

         17  recovery itself. We don't know what's left there,

         18  and as we've had to, several times we have had to

         19  take loads, remove debris, put it in what we call a

         20  drop zone that the Fire Department, Police and Port

         21  Authority Police go through it, sometimes we have to

         22  do that two, three times before we're satisfied that

         23  we have recovered the remains from that debris.

         24                 So, if we have to do a lot of that,

         25  then that could slow down the process.
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          2                 So, it's very hard at this point to

          3  put any more numbers around it, or even try to get a

          4  sense of what's left. It would be a very, very

          5  shabby guess on my part, and probably wouldn't be a

          6  very good one.

          7                 One of our operations people might be

          8  better able, perhaps the engineers, who are

          9  surveying this as we do it, might be better able to

         10  give you an answer.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Maybe if you

         12  could give us, this Committee, at a proper time, the

         13  poundage of refuge or debris left at that location

         14  and number of trucks it will probably take to remove

         15  that debris?

         16                 MR. ADAMS: Yes, I'm sure that we can

         17  get back to you.

         18                 We know that it's about 1.3, 1.4

         19  million tons have been removed. The estimates were

         20  that there was about maybe 1.5 to 1.6, so maybe we

         21  have about 200,000 pounds of debris, or tons of

         22  debris left to go. But, again, that's constantly

         23  being refined as the excavation continues.

         24                 So, I will have somebody get back to

         25  you on the issue of how much is left, the number of
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          2  loads projected, as well as an estimate, I guess, of

          3  how much more time is left.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you.

          5                 One quick question. I know we have

          6  the three strikes you're out, we were talking about

          7  the safety response, and that was something by the

          8  contractors to their employees; do we have a -- are

          9  we also monitoring the contractors themselves, if

         10  there is any contractors that are above and beyond

         11  more than the other in violations that they're

         12  removed from the site?

         13                 MR. ADAMS: Yes, we monitor them

         14  constantly. We get reports constantly from OSHA, who

         15  provides us reports, the insurance company Liberty

         16  Mutual that is on-site provides us reports. As we

         17  see contractors that are showing indications that

         18  there are worse actors than others, then we would

         19  take action.

         20                 Thankfully, we have not had to do

         21  that yet. And, of course, by the natural attrition

         22  of a construction -- well, this is hard to call it

         23  construction -- recovery, debris removal, clean-up

         24  operation, contractors come and go. So, we've had

         25  groups of contractors. As a matter in fact, just in
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          2  the last couple of weeks we had three of our

          3  contractors finish their work and are leaving or in

          4  the process of leaving the site now, and new

          5  contractors will come on board. So, we're constantly

          6  monitoring their compliance.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 Assistant Commissioner Leighton, you

         10  will not be here when testimony is given on this

         11  document that was given to us, and you were going

         12  into a direction. Would you like to complete that so

         13  you can defend this article before you leave?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         15  Sure.

         16                 I mean, these are not all the results

         17  here, but just there's just some misleading things

         18  it seems on this document, and the standards that

         19  are used are not always 40 micrograms per square

         20  foot, that's the EPA level that would clear or is

         21  used to assess whether there are lead hazards on the

         22  floor on the interior space. And then there are

         23  different levels for windows, windowsill clearance,

         24  for window well clearance. There are different

         25  standards to be used in outdoor areas where children
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          2  play and then other outdoor areas.

          3                 So, I just, my concern is that we

          4  make sure that we're comparing the results that are

          5  attained to the correct standards, and also for us

          6  to realize that there are real background levels,

          7  unfortunately, of lead in our environment and urban

          8  areas, and in New York City in particular we do know

          9  that there are very high levels of lead.

         10                 And over the last few years HUD has

         11  actually done a number of studies to look at what

         12  the lead in outdoor streets dust is, and they're

         13  very high, actually, and this is mostly in urban

         14  areas.

         15                 So, my gut feeling, my true feeling,

         16  is that the exposures, or the levels that you saw at

         17  the school were probably something that is resulting

         18  from normal outdoor air exposure in New York City,

         19  and not really from the World Trade Center site.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Quiet, please.

         21  Quiet, please. Order.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Quiet, please.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Assistant

         25  Commissioner, please complete your statement, and
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          2  not necessarily from the World Trade Center site.

          3                 Because I think one thing, and I

          4  didn't go over part of my testimony where I had a

          5  lot of the science issues that I was going to

          6  discuss, but one of the -- I guess the most

          7  important thing for us to understand is that when we

          8  are looking at exposures and health effects, the

          9  first thing we have to know, is there an exposure

         10  there, okay? And then we need to know, if in a case

         11  like this, is the exposure really from the situation

         12  that we're talking about, in the case the World

         13  Trade Center site.

         14                 And I am clearly not saying that lead

         15  does not exist, I am really just questioning whether

         16  we really believe that it is from the World Trade

         17  Center site, and my gut feeling from knowing lots of

         18  information about New York City lead levels, that my

         19  gut feeling is that this is probably something that

         20  is not uncommon in New York City.

         21                 So, I hope that's helpful. And there

         22  are, EPA has lots of samples that are done for lead

         23  from the site. Not to say that there was no lead in

         24  the site, clearly.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: There was lead
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          2  in the site.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

          4  There was some lead in some of the samples at the

          5  site, but whether, and in the air -- I'm not sure if

          6  actually in the air.

          7                 OSHA had 1,000 measurements of lead

          8  in the air, and only 17, and this is on the site,

          9  only 17 of those were over the OSHA standards. So,

         10  we're not talking about huge amounts of lead

         11  exposure from the World Trade Center Disaster.

         12                 I mean, not to say that there wasn't

         13  none, clearly, but I think we really have to

         14  recognize what the background is in this situation.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         17  Councilman.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I'm finishing

         19  up on my last question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, sorry.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: This is going

         22  to go into another area, and it's a concern of mine,

         23  and I'm not trying to be dramatic in my statement,

         24  but a lot of police and fire wives buried a lot of

         25  husbands and vice-versa in this terrible calamity,
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          2  and a lot of people, 2,500, are the citizens and

          3  non-citizens of this country also buried a lot of

          4  loved ones.

          5                 The unfortunate part is there doesn't

          6  seem to be a -- I guess Michels, Stanley spoke to it

          7  earlier, the medical registry set-up in any form.

          8                 I know that people that live in and

          9  around Battery Park and Downtown Manhattan, many of

         10  those people will move on, over the next ten or 15

         11  years, I know that many of the people in the City of

         12  New York will move around over the next ten or 15

         13  years, and I think it's important that we do some

         14  testing at the site, above the site, and that it's

         15  an ongoing test, and that there are some results

         16  that are posted annually and that the tests that are

         17  completed are not just done in the City of New York,

         18  but are done also in the counties around,

         19  surrounding the City of New York.

         20                 I know that the treat release rooms

         21  in my area of Bay Ridge and Dycker Heights and the

         22  emergency rooms are full of people who are coming in

         23  on a daily basis with respiratory illnesses, and I

         24  don't think any of us are taking any swabs or blood

         25  tests or samples to see if there's any high rates of
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          2   -- what's the --

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

          4  Contaminants.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 And that I think we should be doing

          8  that at some level, and that we know ten years and

          9  15 years from now -- see, it's going to be easy to

         10  track the widow, or if a police officer dies or a

         11  fireman dies ten years from now, there will be a

         12  cause or effect, or maybe there won't be, but at

         13  least we'll be able to prove that that individual

         14  was at that location. But as the people start to

         15  move in years to come, and they move around the City

         16  of New York and we start to lose contact with them,

         17  we lose the cause and effect and I think it's

         18  important that we try to focus in, not only in the

         19  City of New York but in the five boroughs and come

         20  and have some real substantial tests done, and some

         21  substantial reporting over the next ten or 15 years.

         22                 Is there an agreement in that, or is

         23  there a way that we can lead in that direction with

         24  this FEMA money to make sure that that money is

         25  placed in for this testing over the next 20-year
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          2  period? Difficult number of questions in that,

          3  wasn't there?

          4                 MS. CALLAHAN: I'm not sure that any

          5  of us are exactly the right players on that topic.

          6  But I do know that there's a tremendous amount of

          7  discussion within the federal government regarding

          8  establishing those kind of registries and I really

          9  think that that's an issue that's squarely on the

         10  table and may well be followed up on in the near

         11  future.

         12                 So, I would say we'll carry that

         13  message back to our sister agencies and I think it's

         14  going to fall on very receptive ears.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: So, my

         16  question then would go to who would be the

         17  organizer, I guess OEM will be the organizer, so

         18  I'll wait to hear the report from OEM coming back

         19  from your sister agencies --

         20                 MR. GABRIEL: Well, bring it back to

         21  the task force.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: -- On what

         23  type of register is going to be created, what type

         24  of parameters are going to be set up, and when

         25  that's going to go into effect.
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          2                 MR. GABRIEL: Councilman, what we'll

          3  do, what I can guarantee you that we'll do is we'll

          4  talk about this for sure this week. I'll make sure

          5  that we talk to our federal partners about it and

          6  make it an issue.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And you will

          8  make sure that this body is made aware?

          9                 MR. GABRIEL: I will get back to you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you very

         11  much for your great testimony and great work today.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         14  Council Member Golden, and thank you for your

         15  response.

         16                 Council Member Stewart.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         18  Council Member.

         19                 I have two questions, and they are

         20  simple questions. I'm not too sure which one of you

         21  can answer them, but someone spoke about safety

         22  trained; I want to know, are all the workers on the

         23  site safety trained? That's the first question.

         24                 And the other question is that, you

         25  know we have all these workers, no one has spoken
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          2  about testing these workers, the workers who are on

          3  the site, the site itself. No one has spoken about

          4  testing these workers, and if they are tested, was

          5  there baseline studies done on these workers?

          6                 And are we going to expect five or

          7  ten years from now we have what we call Asian Orange

          8  Syndrome where people are being sick because they

          9  worked on the site and no testing and no follow-up

         10  testing was done on these people who were directly

         11  involved on the site? Can you answer that?

         12                 MR. ADAMS: Let me answer the first

         13  question, which is actually the easy one; and that

         14  is all the site workers are required to go through

         15  the orientation safety training class. It's about a

         16  two, two and a half hour class. And if they don't

         17  have this orange badge, like I have on mine, they

         18  will not be allowed to go into the site. And we

         19  actually have workers who are at the entry points to

         20  the site that check to make sure, and if any worker

         21  manages to get on without having one of these,

         22  they'll be escorted out, and they'll be required to

         23  attend one of the training classes.

         24                 As to the second part, I think I just

         25  want to state, first of all, between what OSHA and
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          2  Liberty Mutual, the insurance carrier, have done, is

          3  they have done a lot of worker monitoring to address

          4  whether or not -- the first question about medical

          5  monitoring, which is what you're getting to, is

          6  whether or not there is actually exposure, and

          7  that's a lot of what the testing has been, that OSHA

          8  and Liberty Mutual have done on the site.

          9                 Now, as to the question of medical

         10  monitoring, maybe I could defer to -- Jessica, is

         11  that your area?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         13  Well, there is a lot of discussion that's going on

         14  between the City and various City employees about

         15  different testing protocols that will be done. I

         16  think there is also a lot of discussions, and I know

         17  the State is planning and is getting some funding to

         18  do testing of state employees who are on the site.

         19  And I believe that also there is potential -- and

         20  the firemen have been extensively examined and

         21  tested, and I also believe that there are

         22  discussions going on and hopefully studies that will

         23  be happening very soon about various workers who are

         24  not government employees who will have various

         25  testing done on them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What I'm

          3  trying to find out also is that, is there a program

          4  where all these workers that come into the site,

          5  where they should be tested to have a baseline so

          6  that nine months or five years later, if something

          7  happens to any one of those workers, it means then

          8  we can attribute, we can see the change. Is there

          9  some form of program that you have, you are testing

         10  these workers before they go on the site, to know

         11  that, you know -- because if you are giving a

         12  certain type of medication to someone, you have to

         13  take baseline studies so that you know that if that

         14  medication would change their blood level, or does

         15  something to their liver, we can know that to stop

         16  or whatever.

         17                 Now, you have workers coming into the

         18  site, and we know the site is very toxic, with

         19  debris and all these different things, are you doing

         20  any form of studies to say we take baseline studies

         21  for the blood, or do a complete examination to make

         22  sure that these workers are fit to be there, and if

         23  they're exposed to some of these chemicals it will

         24  not aggravate their liver condition, or something

         25  like that, to create a problem that we attribute to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            215

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  call it Asian Orange or something like that later

          3  on, I want to know what you're doing about that?

          4                 MR. GABRIEL: Now, understand that a

          5  lot of workers did go to the site before they ever

          6  had an opportunity to do baselines. Obviously, in

          7  the nature of an emergency response, it was just not

          8  possible to stop and give everybody baseline

          9  examinations.

         10                 Subsequently there have been a number

         11  of efforts, and there have been multiple efforts,

         12  and actually one of the things about coordinating is

         13  that some of the unions have actually brought their

         14  own groups, and there has been a group from John's

         15  Hopkins that's been there to study the teamsters.

         16  The operating engineers have had people, everybody

         17  had to be medically qualified for respiratory

         18  protection, that's a very minimal requirement, but

         19  everybody had to go through that, the fit testing

         20  that had to be done. So, yes, a lot of the

         21  contractors did have their employees, many of their

         22  employees who showed up on the site had already had

         23  medical monitoring, obviously truck drivers had to

         24  meet medical requirements to even get their

         25  licenses. So, there were a lot of people who have

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            216

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  already had medical monitoring baseline tests. But

          3  is everybody? Maybe not yet but we're working on it,

          4  and that's something that has been brought up and

          5  there are medical monitoring requirements that have

          6  been put forth, and as of right now, most of the

          7  groups that are coming on now have had at least some

          8  type of testing.

          9                 Now, the question is, is there a

         10  group of people out there that maybe didn't get

         11  tested, because a lot of people have come and gone,

         12  and that's part of I think the registry issue, which

         13  Jessica has referred to and discussed previously.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: One last

         16  question.

         17                 Has OSHA been requiring that everyone

         18  on site wear masks?

         19                 MS. CLARKE: Yes. In my earlier

         20  testimony I mentioned that from day one we felt it

         21  was absolutely critical that respiratory protection

         22  be worn by the workers, because we could not

         23  determine with great certainty what the levels of

         24  exposure were over time. It changes hour-to-hour,

         25  operation-to-operation. We have extensive sampling,
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          2  as Mr. Adams has indicated, between us and Liberty

          3  Mutual that in the vast majority of the cases, the

          4  worker exposure levels are not of concern. But there

          5  are some cases, especially task specific cases. The

          6  people who are doing the cutting of the steel, those

          7  elevated lead levels that Dr. Leighton mentioned

          8  before were workers who are cutting steel. Some of

          9  the debris removal, some of the jack-hammering is

         10  where we've seen silica over-exposures. It's a small

         11  number, but it happens and we cannot anticipate from

         12  one time to another. So, yes, it's absolutely

         13  crucial that they continue to wear the respiratory

         14  protection, at the type that I had a photo of.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 I would like to recognize Council

         19  Member Gerson, who just wants to --

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: No more

         21  questions, we want to move on. I just want to thank

         22  you. I look forward to receiving the responses on

         23  the various items that we requested a follow-up on.

         24                 And just to add to that, to DOH, I

         25  heard your testimony about the possible lead
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          2  sources, in view of concerns, if you could, though,

          3  get back to us to see if there's any further

          4  follow-up investigation, or analysis that could be

          5  done, just that would enable us to either verify

          6  what you stated or to, you know, see if there is

          7  something else in this, and, you know, I think in

          8  view of concerns, some follow inquiry is warranted.

          9                 And to Commissioner Avaltroni and

         10  others, you testified earlier that the decision was

         11  made that the clean-up of indoor private premises

         12  would remain primarily in private hands, subject to

         13  oversight. If we hear testimony that there's still

         14  ongoing concerns for fiber removal, I would ask our

         15  government to reconsider that fundamental decision

         16  and maybe now it's time that the government needs to

         17  take a stronger involvement in-hand, in assuring, as

         18  I said earlier, on a COMSTAT case-by-case basis that

         19  there is full clean-up, not just leave it in the

         20  private hands to the extent it has been.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         22  Council Member Gerson.

         23                 I wish to be associated with those

         24  remarks, and with that said, I'd like to thank each

         25  and every one of you for coming here today and for
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          2  your good service and good testimony. It was a

          3  pleasure to have you here, and we look forward to

          4  working with you on this very challenging issue for

          5  all of us over the next weeks and months.

          6                 So, thank you all very much, I

          7  appreciate it.

          8                 Next panel. We have Congressman

          9  Naddler; Hugh Kaufman of the EPA, and -- Alan, help

         10  me out here.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Dr. Eric

         12  Chatfield.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Dr. Eric

         14  Chatfield.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And Dr. Levin.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And Dr. Levin.

         17                 And the witnesses, we would like them

         18  to testify in that order.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Dr. Chatfield,

         20  you were called.

         21                 As you take your seats, we thank you

         22  for your patience. And Congress Member, at the same

         23  time we are waiting for everyone to get settled, let

         24  me just state my appreciation to you for your work

         25  in this field, on behalf of our community,
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          2  Congressman Nadler.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I also wish to

          4  recognize Council Member Nadler --

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Congressman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon me. What

          7  did I say? What did I say, Councilman?

          8                 Congressman, sorry for the demotion

          9  there. Sorry about that.

         10                 Thank you very much for your

         11  patience. Thank you very much for your patience,

         12  Congressman. We appreciate very much your patience.

         13  You have been here for hours and hours, we recognize

         14  that. We appreciate that. We know that the people

         15  that you represent and serve so well also recognize

         16  and appreciate that. We value your presence here and

         17  we look forward to your testimony. We're very

         18  grateful to you for staying and taking in all of

         19  these proceedings. We greatly appreciate it.

         20                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Well, thank you

         21  very much. Let me say that --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, if I could

         23  just say, once the panel is fully assembled, we'll

         24  do our oath thing, you know, and get that out of the

         25  way.
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          2                 Thank you for your indulgence.

          3                 Judith, would you care to do the

          4  honors?

          5                 MS. MACFARLANE: Do you swear or

          6  affirm that the testimony you are about to give is

          7  the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

          8  truth?

          9                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Yes, sir. Ma'am.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         11  much. If you could identify yourself for the record

         12  and proceed with your testimony.

         13                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Thank you. My

         14  name is Jerrold Nadler. I am a member of Congress,

         15  representing the 8th Congressional District which is

         16  parts of Manhattan and Brooklyn, including Lower

         17  Manhattan.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I could for a

         19  second, I'd just like to ask everyone to be very

         20  quiet in the Chamber.

         21                 Congressman Nadler has been here for

         22  hours and every, I am sure, wants to hear his

         23  testimony, so I will insist upon quiet so that we

         24  can hear his good words.

         25                 Please continue.
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          2                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Thank you.

          3                 Having listened to the previous

          4  panel, I'm only going to read a part of my prepared

          5  statement, and I'm going to basically reply to some

          6  of what I heard.

          7                 I must say that having been in public

          8  office now my 26th year, I have rarely heard such

          9  bureaucratic absurdities, such misrepresentations,

         10  such dancing around the main points, and such

         11  outright falsehoods.

         12                 Let me also say, I'm glad to hear the

         13  Mayor is forming a task force. I hope that task

         14  force will do more than the EPA task force that was

         15  formed three weeks ago has done, which as far as I

         16  know is nothing. We do not need task forces at this

         17  point. If a task force is a sign that the

         18  Administration is finally paying attention and going

         19  to do something intelligent on the subject, well,

         20  that's good. But task forces are not what we need.

         21                 We know what we need to do. We know

         22  what the problem is, and we ought to go out and do

         23  it, and that is a systematic testing of indoor

         24  spaces, apartments, small businesses, in concentric

         25  circles out from the World Trade Center, in Lower
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          2  Manhattan, in Brooklyn, in Jersey City, in Queens,

          3  wherever, wherever that cloud went, until you get

          4  consistently negative results so you know that

          5  you've gone far enough.

          6                 And where appropriate, there ought to

          7  be remediation, and remediation has to be

          8  professional remediation, probably at a cost of

          9  about ten to $20,000 per apartment, it should be

         10  paid for by the federal government. We should not

         11  depend on private citizens to remediate their own

         12  apartments, and, frankly, it's illegal to do so, but

         13  I'll come back to that.

         14                 Mr. Chairman, as the Congressman

         15  representing Ground Zero in the surrounding area,

         16  I'm deeply concerned about the environmental and

         17  health effects posed by the collapse of the World

         18  Trade Center, for my constituents, and for those who

         19  go to school or work in the area, and I should add

         20  also, for people in other nearby areas, who aren't

         21  my constituents.

         22                 It has now been exactly six months

         23  since the terrorist attacks, and, unfortunately, the

         24  people in Lower Manhattan still do not know whether

         25  or not it is safe to live and work in the area.
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          2                 The EPA, the Environmental Protection

          3  Agency, has failed in its mission to "protect human

          4  health and to safeguard the natural environment" by

          5  not exercising its full authority to test and clean

          6  all indoor spaces where people live and work.

          7                 As such, EPA has created a full-scale

          8  crisis of public confidence.

          9                 But all is not lost, EPA can and must

         10  act now to remedy the situation, and make Lower

         11  Manhattan safe and to restore public trust.

         12                 Despite the statements to the

         13  contrary, the agency does currently have the legal

         14  authority and resources to do so and it should do so

         15  quickly.

         16                 I am going to begin by being very

         17  blunt. We now know a number of things. We know

         18  enough to be alarmed and outraged at the federal

         19  government's response to the environmental impact of

         20  9/11.

         21                 First, we know that EPA administrator

         22  Christine Todd Whitman mislead the public on

         23  September 18th of last year when she said she was

         24  glad to reassure the people of New York that their

         25  air is safe to breathe and their water is safe to
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          2  drink.

          3                 She made that statement without any

          4  indoor data whatsoever. Zero testing had been done

          5  at that stage.

          6                 Second, we know that the EPA has made

          7  a series of conflicting comments about the presence

          8  and quality hazardous materials and has knowingly

          9  withheld critical data regarding the causticity of

         10  the dust.

         11                 Third, we know that the EPA delegated

         12  authority to New York City to handle indoor

         13  environments, but did nothing to ensure that the

         14  City's response was appropriate. The City's response

         15  was not appropriate.

         16                 This left individual New Yorkers to

         17  their owned uninformed devices, often without the

         18  means to take care of themselves and their families.

         19                 This is true, even as the EPA had its

         20  own building at 290 Broadway professionally tested

         21  and remediated.

         22                 And, finally, we know that the EPA

         23  has treated New York differently than it has treated

         24  other locales, contaminated by hazardous materials.

         25                 New York was at the center of one of
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          2  the most calamitous events in American history and

          3  the EPA has walked away for most of the

          4  consequences.

          5                 Ironically, the very first public

          6  testing conducted inside residences, which was

          7  commissioned by the Ground Zero elected officials

          8  task force, commenced on the very day Ms. Whitman

          9  made her misleading statement.

         10                 The results were made available to

         11  the EPA, and to the City of New York on October

         12  12th.

         13                 The test results showed elevated

         14  levels of hazardous materials in the few apartments

         15  that were tested at random.

         16                 It should have indicated to anyone

         17  who looked at them, that a systematic program of

         18  testing and remediation should be undertaken.

         19                 The EPA did nothing and Ms. Whitman

         20  did not clarify her statement.

         21                 In recent weeks, the EPA has stated

         22  repeatedly that the City of New York, not the EPA is

         23  responsible for indoor testing. The City, however,

         24  didn't get around to testing inside homes until

         25  November and December, those 30 apartments mentioned
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          2  before by ASTDR.

          3                 The full results of those tests are

          4  still not available, and according to the Health

          5  Department, won't be available until some time in

          6  the spring.

          7                 I do not understand why the results

          8  of tests undertaken by a public agency are being

          9  delayed for public release. Our test results took

         10  less than a month to be released.

         11                 Nevertheless, last month the City

         12  Department of Health issued a press release

         13  regarding this limited indoor testing, despite a

         14  passifying headline, the limited data in the press

         15  release has caused the scientists with whom we've

         16  consulted to believe that full results would

         17  directly contradict Ms. Whitman's statements.

         18                 The release does make it clear, as

         19  did our commission study, that there were

         20  disconcerting levels of hazardous materials in at

         21  least some apartments.

         22                 The EPA has not only provided false

         23  reassurances and misleading information, the EPA has

         24  also abrogated its responsibility to act.

         25                 In a statement issued on January
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          2  17th, in response to a press conference I held, the

          3  EPA states that it, "has led the effort to monitor

          4  the outdoor environment, while the City of New York

          5  has taken the lead regarding the reoccupancy of

          6  buildings."

          7                 At least the EPA admits that it is

          8  delegated authority to the City. Unfortunately, the

          9  EPA has yet to provide any legal justification for

         10  doing so, no has it provided any evidence of the

         11  oversight it is compelled by law to take to ensure

         12  that the City acts in accordance with strict federal

         13  standards.

         14                 Indeed, as we know, no such oversight

         15  was undertaken, and the City has not acted in

         16  accordance with the federal requirements.

         17                 As we speak, the EPA is doing indoor

         18  testing and remediation in other areas in the

         19  country, such as Herculanean, Missouri, and other

         20  locales that do not have Superfund designation.

         21                 We must learn why the EPA is treating

         22  New York differently. And this double standard is

         23  unconscionable.

         24                 Now let me talk for a few minutes

         25  about the actions of the City and address myself to
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          2  some of the comments made here this morning.

          3                 The citizens of Lower Manhattan,

          4  again, when I say Lower Manhattan, I also mean areas

          5  in Brooklyn, perhaps Queens, wherever the cloud

          6  went, residents, workers and building owners have

          7  been victims of a terrorist attack on this nation

          8  and should not bear the burden or the financial

          9  expense of making their homes, offices and

         10  businesses safe again. That's a government

         11  responsibility,.

         12                 No one doubts that FEMA is paying for

         13  the removal of the debris from in and around the

         14  World Trade Center site, so if a girder fell on your

         15  house and demolished it, FEMA would pay for removing

         16  the girder, and also assuming you had no insurance,

         17  rebuilding for the house.

         18                 If that girder, however, was

         19  pulverized into very fine particulates between .09

         20  and .25 microns, and it went in the ventilation and

         21  air conditioning shafts of your building and into

         22  the windows, and now is present in considerable

         23  quantity in your apartment and in the other

         24  apartments and the public areas of the building, I

         25  don't see why it is not equally FEMA's burden,
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          2  FEMA's duty to pay for its removal, what we call

          3  remediation.

          4                 Now, let me address a number -- first

          5  of all, let me address a number of comments that Mr.

          6  Avaltroni, the Deputy Commissioner of New York City

          7  Department of Environmental Protection made. He said

          8  very early on the decision was made that the

          9  clean-up within private property would remain the

         10  responsibility of private property owners. Although

         11  the City would provide as much guidance and

         12  oversight as possible. Really? What oversight.

         13                 What systematic oversight has the

         14  City undertaken to see which apartments have been

         15  tested, which remediated, et cetera. In fact, the

         16  City sent out notices to landlords --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: While you're

         18  looking that up Congressman, I would just like to

         19  ask if there is anyone from the DEP who is still in

         20  the audience here?

         21                 Anyone here from the New York City

         22  Department of Environmental Protection to hear this

         23  testimony?

         24                 Going once, going twice, going three

         25  times.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Mr. Chairman,

          3  let it be known in my opening remarks I specifically

          4  requested the agencies to at least leave

          5  representatives to hear the rest of the testimony.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Duly noted.

          7                 Is there a representative of the

          8  Mayor's Office here? A representative of the Mayor's

          9  Office? Representative of the Mayor's Office in the

         10  room? Going once, going twice, going three times.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to

         12  say -- the Department of Health is here? We

         13  appreciate that. Thank you.

         14                 I just want to say that I am

         15  obviously shocked that DEP didn't stay, but I was

         16  elected to the City Council on February of 1999 and

         17  prior to that, from '92 to '96 I was Chief of Staff

         18  to then City Council Member Tom Duane, I have never

         19  been at a hearing before where the Mayor's Office

         20  did not leave someone to listen.

         21                 This is probably one of the most

         22  important hearings the City Council has ever had, so

         23  I just want to for the record say this is

         24  unprecedented in my, you know, seven or so years of

         25  experience. And I think we should send someone over
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          2  to the Mayor's side to the bull pen.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I would

          4  like to send someone over to the bull pen and make a

          5  request of someone from the Mayor's Office to listen

          6  to every second of this testimony and to indicate to

          7  them that there be a representative of each of the

          8  agencies here, as well, to hear this testimony so

          9  that its benefits can bear fruit.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And thank you,

         11  again, to the Department of Health.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Are we sending

         13  someone, Ami? Are you going over there? Okay.

         14                 Thank you very much. I apologize for

         15  the interruption, Congressman.

         16                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Thank you. And

         17  you reminded me, before I get back into the

         18  agencies, I want to mention that I today released a

         19  white paper on Lower Manhattan Air Quality, which I

         20  would like to enter into the record.

         21                 Sergeant, please, if you could

         22  receive the paper from the Congressman.

         23                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I'm not going to

         24  read it, it is of considerable length, and it is

         25  more directed toward the federal response, rather
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          2  than the City response, although there are some

          3  comments in the City response.

          4                 Let me get back to Commissioner, or

          5  Deputy Commissioner Avaltroni's remarks.

          6                 So, the first thing he said was the

          7  City would provide oversight. We're not aware of any

          8  oversight.

          9                 Before allowing occupants into any

         10  residential or commercial building near the Trade

         11  Center site, the City's various agencies required

         12  building owners to take these steps. It's not true.

         13  Required.

         14                 I have here the letter circulated by

         15  the Department, DEP, notice to building owners south

         16  of 14th Street. It's not dated. Well, the fax is

         17  September 17th, so it was very early on, and the

         18  operative word on all of this is the word "should."

         19  The word "should" is used. Building owners should do

         20  this, should do this, should do that. Nowhere does

         21  it say that they are required to, or that they must.

         22                 Owners, managers should have possible

         23  contamination problems indoors reviewed by a

         24  professional, by competent professionals, et cetera.

         25                 Secondly, it goes on to say the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            234

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  City's various agencies required building owners to

          3  take these steps: assess the building structure

          4  strength; restore gas and electric service; restore

          5  building water service; assess the presence of

          6  hazardous materials, such as asbestos and remediate

          7  as required under applicable regulations.

          8                 Well, that is very interesting. First

          9  of all, I have here the February 12th letter, sent

         10  to building owners, by the DEP, note the date

         11  February 12th. February 12th is the day after

         12  February 11th, which was the date of the US Senate

         13  hearing in which we blasted their not doing

         14  anything. So, on February 12th they started doing

         15  something. Something.

         16                 "Please be advised, building owners

         17  are responsible for the cleaning of building

         18  exteriors, grounds and common areas."

         19                 What about apartments? Building

         20  owners are being told in so many words they are not

         21  responsible for apartments, or for that matter, if

         22  they're a commercial building, for office spaces.

         23  Only for common areas.

         24                 Who is responsible? The tenants

         25  themselves, presumably.
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          2                 Now, he says that they should assess

          3  that they were required to assess the presence of

          4  hazardous materials such as asbestos and remediate

          5  as required under applicable regulations.

          6                 A little later in his testimony he

          7  says, where building owners identify the presence of

          8  asbestos containing material, and, again, it's their

          9  responsibility, and now what qualifications do they

         10  have to assess the presence of asbestos containing

         11  materials?

         12                 New York City rules require that a

         13  licensed contractor with certified asbestos workers

         14  perform the clean-up activities. That is true. It's

         15  also highly misleading.

         16                 New York City rules require that a

         17  licensed contractor with certified asbestos workers

         18  perform the clean-up activities. Let me read you

         19  quotes from two other documents.

         20                 This is a letter written by Assistant

         21  United States Secretary of Labor for the

         22  Occupational Safety and Health -- in other words,

         23  the head of OSHA, John Henshaw, in which he writes

         24  in answer to a question: "Must all of the dust be

         25  tested for asbestos using the Transmission Electron
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          2  Microscopy method?" The question was posed by the

          3  lawyer for Local 78 of the Asbestos Removal, et

          4  cetera, Union.

          5                 The reply, the official reply from

          6  OSHA is, "In that the materials containing asbestos

          7  were used in the construction of the Twin Towers,

          8  the settled dust from their clouds must be presumed

          9  to contain asbestos?

         10                 In other words, you don't have to

         11  test for asbestos. If there's dust there, you must

         12  legally presume it contains asbestos.

         13                 Therefore, the use of TEM is not

         14  necessary in order to establish the applicable

         15  provisions of 29 CFR 1926.1101, the federal

         16  regulations, apply during the demolition or salvage,

         17  which means clean-up, of the affected structures.

         18                 In other words, official notification

         19  from the US Department of Labor from OSHA that if

         20  there's any dust you must presume it to contain

         21  asbestos.

         22                 Now I am going to read from the New

         23  York City Department of Health response to the World

         24  Trade Center disaster: Recommendations for people

         25  reoccupying commercial buildings and residents
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          2  reentering their homes.

          3                 Now, remember, the Deputy

          4  Commissioner of DEC says that New York City rules

          5  require a licensed contractor with certified

          6  asbestos workers perform the clean-up of any

          7  asbestos material.

          8                 OSHA says any dust must be presumed

          9  to have asbestos.

         10                 "How should I clean the dust in my

         11  apartment when I move back in?"

         12                 "The best way to remove dust is to

         13  use a wet rag or a wet mop. Sweeping with a dry

         14  broom is not recommended because it can make dust

         15  airborne again.

         16                 Where dust is thick you can directly

         17  wet the dust with water and remove it with wet rags

         18  and mops.

         19                 If your apartment is very dusty" --

         20  in other words, if it's got a lot of contaminants in

         21  it "you should wash or HEPA vacuum your curtains."

         22                 In other words, here is the

         23  Department of Health telling people, giving people

         24  illegal advice, which the Commissioner of DEP just

         25  said was illegal, because New York City rules
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          2  require that a licensed contractor remove the

          3  asbestos-laden dust, and here's the City Department

          4  of Health saying you do it, Mr. Tenant, or Mrs.

          5  Tenant, or Ms. Tenant. You remove it. And the best

          6  way to do it is with a wet mop and a wet rag. And as

          7  I'm sure the scientist will tell you that does no

          8  good, and may in fact get the dust back into the air

          9  and be harmful.

         10                 So, the DOH is telling people, is

         11  giving illegal advice, reckless advice, bordering on

         12  criminally negligent advice, to clean up their own

         13  asbestos, and anything else.

         14                 So, while the Commissioner's

         15  testimony that the rules require that a licensed

         16  contractor with certified asbestos workers perform

         17  these activities, clean-up activities, it's true,

         18  the rules do require it, but the City is ignoring

         19  the rules. The City is telling tenants to do it on

         20  their own and giving them terrible and illegal

         21  advice, illegal against City, State and federal law.

         22                 At the completion of the clean-up

         23  activities, the City's regulations require clearance

         24  air sampling by licensed professionals prior to

         25  allowing a reoccupancy, et cetera. I doubt you'll
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          2  find too many residents of Lower Manhattan, who can

          3  testify that that happened in their apartments.

          4                 So, this is Mr. Avaltroni's

          5  testimony. One other thing I will mention. As you

          6  will hear from my colleagues, short-term exposure to

          7  airborne asbestos at levels equal to or lower than

          8   .01 fibers, there is one percent fibers per cubic

          9  centimeter, carries an extremely low risk of causing

         10  asbestos-related illness. True, and again misleading

         11  and irrelevant.

         12                 And Ms. Callahan, I think, from EPA

         13  responded, told you and showed you charts of how few

         14  of the sites had more than one percent asbestos, I

         15  think she said 30 something of the 98 sites she

         16  tested, she didn't test, ASTDR tested, but we still

         17  haven't seen the real data. We're just getting what

         18  they choose to release, because they haven't

         19  released the data from that yet, and won't til the

         20  spring.

         21                 Thirty something of the 98 sites had

         22  asbestos, but only two had a dangerous level,

         23  meeting above one percent.

         24                 Now, it is true what he says, that

         25  exposure, short term exposure to airborne asbestos
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          2  below one percent isn't terrible. But here is the

          3  key difference between outdoor air and indoor air:

          4  Nature cleans outdoor air, unless recontaminated by,

          5  for example, improperly non-hermetically sealed

          6  trucks carrying stuff to the barge, unless

          7  recontaminated, the outdoor air gets cleaned. The

          8  wind disperses the particulate particles over time,

          9  the rain washes it.

         10                 It's not true of your apartment.

         11  Indoors hopefully it doesn't rain. Indoors the wind

         12  doesn't disperse the particles. The particles get

         13  into the drapes, the rugs, the porous wood surfaces,

         14  into everything. Not everything, some things they

         15  don't, but into a lot of stuff in apartments and in

         16  offices.

         17                 And it stays there for eternity until

         18  removed.

         19                 So, if you are in an apartment with

         20  half of one percent, or a tenth of one percent

         21  asbestos, and if that dust is stirred up every time

         22  you walk on the carpet, you will breathe that.

         23                 Now, a short-term exposure probably

         24  won't do much damage. But people presumably live in

         25  their apartments and work in their offices more than
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          2  short term, and everything we know tells us that all

          3  particulates that are toxic and are harmful, whether

          4  it's asbestos or almost any other particulate, that

          5  the effect is cumulative. There is no safe dosage,

          6  although statistically you can say below a certain

          7  level, it won't happen very often, but the longer

          8  you stay in the same place and the longer you're

          9  exposed to a below one percent asbestos or zync or

         10  lead or whatever it is, the more toxicity

         11  accumulates in your system, and the higher

         12  statistically the results is that you're going to be

         13  affected by it at some point down the line, maybe

         14  ten years, 20 years, 30 years down the line.

         15                 Now, I will say one other thing, by

         16  the way, the City Council should be concerned with,

         17  before I go onto the next; and that is, that by

         18  giving out this terrible misinformation, if you have

         19  an asbestos-laden, if you have a dusty apartment,

         20  which the law presumes contains asbestos, clean it

         21  up with a wet mop and a wet rag. And if you do so,

         22  and you come down 20 years from now with

         23  mesothelioma or lung cancer or asbestosis, you have

         24  one hell of a lawsuit for several million dollars

         25  against the City of New York.
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          2                 The City of New York is piling up

          3  probably ten of billions of dollars of contingent

          4  liability by this stupidity.

          5                 And unless the City remediates this,

          6  it is going to pay not just the terrible human

          7  price, but a terrible financial price, of course not

          8  during the current administration, probably none of

          9  us will be in public office at that time, but it is

         10  our responsibility to stop that.

         11                 Now, the nice thing about this, the

         12  good thing about this, is that where you're dealing

         13  with small levels of toxicity, which aren't going to

         14  be harmful short term, less than one percent, if we

         15  remediate it now or next month, we probably

         16  eliminated 99 percent of the problem.

         17                 Now, some people who's apartments

         18  were incredibly dusty and breathed in a lot of it

         19  right after the disaster, it's a different question.

         20  But if there are thousands of apartments with low

         21  levels of asbestos or other things, if we get rid of

         22  it now or next month, if we really do the job that

         23  we still can do, we've probably averted 99 percent

         24  of the health consequences over the long period of

         25  time, and the financial consequences, too.
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          2                 So, it's not too late.  It is too

          3  late to avert a lot of the health problems for the

          4  firefighters and police officers and so forth who

          5  responded, and all we can do is deal with those

          6  problems now, with those health problems, it is not

          7  too late to prevent the bulk of the health problems

          8  from the indoor air problems, if we act

          9  expeditiously.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Congressman

         11  Nadler, can I just interrupt for one second?

         12                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Yes.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm like

         14  completely out of order, but the stuff from the

         15  Department of Health, was that all put out by the

         16  Giuliani Administration?

         17                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I don't know when

         18  they stopped putting it out or if they stopped

         19  putting it out.

         20                 I know it's on their web site, I know

         21  they were giving it out.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Not that that

         23  would remove blame, I'm just trying to get from the

         24  Bloomberg Administration --

         25                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Well, I do think
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          2  it is somewhat relevant, because we have a new

          3  Mayor, a new Administration, and they might

          4  hopefully think that what a mess.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

          6                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: If we can get on

          7  top of it now it isn't our mess.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

          9                 Well, I'll follow up about that, if

         10  we could look at that, because that's something for

         11  the Health Committee.

         12                 Thank you, Congressman.

         13                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Thank you.

         14                 Let me comment now on some of the

         15  other statements that were made, let me comment

         16  briefly on some of the statements that were made by

         17  various witnesses, and I'll do it by agency because

         18  I don't remember the names of the witnesses.

         19                 The OEM said our assessment -- oh,

         20  before I do that, let me mention one other problem

         21  that we have. Because Christie Whitman and EPA have

         22  said repeatedly the air is safe to breathe in Lower

         23  Manhattan.

         24                 The Red Cross, FEMA, some other

         25  agencies are telling people in highly toxic
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          2  apartments, I mean near Ground Zero where it's

          3  thick, they had one witness at the ombudsman hearing

          4  two weeks ago who said that she had fiberglass

          5  poisoning and her apartment was full of fiberglass.

          6  She had a doctor's note to that, she was already

          7  sick, and FEMA or the Red Cross, I forget which, was

          8  telling her they will no longer pay for her extra

          9  lodging. She had to go back to her apartment now,

         10  even though she can't possibly. Because after all,

         11  EPA said everything is okay. So, they are using the

         12  false, various agencies are using the false

         13  certifications by EPA, to say that no matter that

         14  your apartment is terrible toxic, that you've got

         15  fiberglass sickness or whatever, we don't have to

         16  pay for you, because generally things are wonderful,

         17  says EPA.

         18                 OEM stated that our assessment of

         19  safety of indoor air is based on testing of outdoor

         20  air. I don't have to tell you how absurd that is,

         21  because outdoor air gets cleaned, the indoor air

         22  does not.

         23                 EPA admitted they are the lead agency

         24  for waste disposal, for hazardous waste disposal.

         25  They are by law. The law does not make a distinction
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          2  about hazardous waste indoors and out doors, and I

          3  wish someone would ask them, don't you consider

          4  asbestos and other laden material indoors as

          5  hazardous waste? And if so, how do you get rid of

          6  your responsibility?

          7                 City DEP, Bob Avaltroni testified

          8  that apartments were professionally tested. I would

          9  like them to tell us how many apartments were

         10  professionally tested. Do they have any idea? What

         11  results are the professional testing? How many were

         12  professionally remediated?

         13                 His statement, as I mentioned before,

         14  is contractory, the clean-up by law requires

         15  professionals and yet his own statement says we

         16  refer it to DOH, which tells the individual tenants

         17  to do it.

         18                 Someone, I forget which agency, said

         19  they they did tests that referred to the PCM tests,

         20  which showed low levels of contaminants, 2,000

         21  samples that produced negative results.

         22                 I think all those tests, is my

         23  recollection, were ambient air, and there's a very

         24  important distinction here. If you simply test the

         25  air in an apartment, and I think some of the
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          2  scientists, Dr. Chatfield and others may want to

          3  testify to this effect more specifically, you may

          4  very well get a negative result on a contaminated

          5  apartment if all you do is test the air. Because the

          6  asbestos and other dust containing the asbestos, and

          7  I keep using the asbestos, but every time I say that

          8  I mean asbestos, lead, zinc, mercury, whatever else

          9  is there, the dust containing all of these

         10  contaminants may well have settled onto surfaces,

         11  into the carpets, the drapes, et cetera, and if you

         12  simply test the air, you may get a negative result.

         13                 If you want to test properly you have

         14  to do what's called aggressive testing. Either shake

         15  up the rugs a little, the way people will do from

         16  time to time when we're walking on them or babies

         17  playing on them, or children, not just babies, then

         18  test the air. Once it's shaken up and the dust gets

         19  shaken out. Or wipe a surface to get the dust, then

         20  test the dust.

         21                 If you simply test ambient air, and I

         22  think most of the tests that they were talking about

         23  were ambient air tests, you're going to get a lot of

         24  very false negatives, and it really doesn't tell you

         25  anything very valuable.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Congressman, if

          3  I could, it's your understanding that that's the

          4  kind of testing that they have done or will do?

          5                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: It's my

          6  understanding that much or most of the testing that

          7  they've done has been ambient testing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. And

          9  actually they haven't really done much at all inside

         10  apartments anyway.

         11                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: That's right. The

         12  Chief Investigator for the Ombudsman here is sitting

         13  and saying it's meaningless.

         14                 And let me point out one other thing,

         15  which my Chief of Staff is reminding me. Building

         16  owners have a built in conflict of interest.

         17                 A building owner is told, test your

         18  building. A building owner who tests his building

         19  and finds contamination is then required to spend a

         20  lot of money cleaning it up. It's nice if he doesn't

         21  find contamination. So, he uses an ambient air

         22  testing which won't find the contamination most of

         23  the time. Or he uses an insensitive method, of which

         24  there are several.

         25                 There are ways of doing it, and it
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          2  doesn't have to be an evil person to do it. You

          3  know, you call various companies and you pick one

          4  that your friends are using, and they haven't had

          5  any problems, because the tests aren't properly

          6  sensitive or they're ambient tests.

          7                 I would also say that Mrs. Callahan

          8  at EPA said the task force that was set up three

          9  weeks ago, and that we have no idea what it's done

         10  since it was set up, will enable people to have

         11  confidence in their homes.

         12                 I would like to know what

         13  specifically is this task force going to do. Are

         14  they going to do testing? Are they going to do

         15  remediation? Are they going to oversee the City's

         16  actions to make sure they meet federal law?

         17                 DEP said that hazardous dust must be

         18  removed, but how do people know if the dust is

         19  hazardous? How do they know how to do it properly?

         20                 I'll give you a few figures also.

         21                 I am told that it costs roughly to

         22  test an apartment, using five samples for various

         23  materials, about $1,250 an apartment to properly

         24  test it.

         25                 Just using round figures, that means
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          2  it's not that expensive for the City to do it and

          3  get the federal government to pay for it.

          4                 If we're going to properly test

          5  10,000 apartments, and I have no idea whether we

          6  need to test 5,000 or 50,000, but take 10,000 is

          7  12.5 million, if it's five times that it's, what's

          8  five times 12.5 million? Not huge in the context of

          9  the $20 billion recovery --

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I'm sorry, can

         11  you just repeat the dollar amounts?

         12                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: That's for

         13  testing, not remediation.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I understand.

         15                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I'll come to

         16  remediation in a minute.

         17                 It costs about $250 to take a sample,

         18  a proper sample, for several different contaminants.

         19  You probably should do about five. This is all what

         20  Dr. Chatfield told me when I asked him earlier

         21  today. It costs about, you should take about five

         22  samples per apartment. So, it's about roughly $1,250

         23  an apartment to do proper testing.

         24                 And if you're therefore going to test

         25  properly 10,000 apartments, it would be 12.5
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          2  million. If you're going to test properly 100,000

          3  apartments, it would be 125 million, half of that,

          4  you know, 50,000, I don't know what amount of

          5  apartments you have to test, and not only

          6  apartments, but also small businesses.

          7                 But you're not talking in the

          8  billions, you're talking in the 12 million to 50, 60

          9  million dollar range, which is in the current budget

         10  a bad thing, but is something that FEMA ought to pay

         11  for and probably would if the City demanded it.

         12                 And the City ought to be demanding

         13  from EPA and FEMA that a systematic testing be done

         14  and paid for by them.

         15                 Secondly, remediation. The testimony

         16  that we had at the Ombudsman hearing, was that

         17  proper professional remediation costs between

         18  $10,000 and $20,000 per apartment, where you find

         19  the contamination.

         20                 Now, you're not going to find the

         21  contamination every place you test, hopefully, but

         22  where you find the contamination, you have to do the

         23  proper remediation, $10,000 to $20,000, not to have

         24  someone do it with a wet mop and a wet rag, and if

         25  you're talking, I mean, you can do the arithmetic,
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          2  that can be anywhere from $100 million to a billion

          3  and a half, two billion dollars, depending how many

          4  apartments. But, again, if that's what it takes,

          5  that's what it takes. We're not flinching from

          6  spending several billion dollars to clean up the

          7  site right at the site, this is a different type of

          8  the same clean up and, again, the federal

          9  government, we should be demanding the federal

         10  government pay for this.

         11                 Finally, let me talk about the ultra

         12  fine particles. I was astonished to hear, I don't

         13  remember who it was, maybe Mrs. Callahan, say --

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Ms. Callahan

         15  in response.

         16                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Okay. Say that we

         17  don't have enough information to know whether that's

         18  really harmful, therefore, we don't really deal with

         19  it.

         20                 It should be the other way around.

         21  That is equivalent of saying, we're not really sure

         22  that arsenic in the drinking water is harmful.

         23  Therefore, we're not going to remove the arsenic

         24  that may be in the drinking water. We'll wait til

         25  the scientific research confirms that it's killing
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          2  everybody.

          3                 If you don't know the impact, then

          4  you have to play it safe. Secondly, it's not true to

          5  start with. We have in my office, I'll supply it to

          6  you, I don't have it with me, in 1996, EPA document,

          7  research document that says that very fine

          8  particulates or ultra fine particulates between .09

          9  and .25 microns is very deleterious to health. Most

         10  scientists, I mean I know this from dealing with

         11  asbestos generally over the years, think that the

         12  smaller the particle, the more harmful it is because

         13  the more easily it gets through your defenses, your

         14  mucous membranes, et cetera, et cetera, and gets

         15  deeper into the smaller chambers, into the alveoli

         16  in the lungs.  So, that fine particulate matter has

         17  to be considered, and should be considered very

         18  dangerous, until the evidence to the contrary comes

         19  along, not the vice-versa.

         20                 I think those are the main points I

         21  wanted to make.

         22                 In summary, it is irresponsible, and

         23  I would say illegal and playing with people's lives

         24  to tell building owners they ought to remediate,

         25  test and remediate and make damn sure their doing so
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          2  in every building.

          3                 It is twice as irresponsible, just as

          4  illegal, I won't say twice as illegal, to tell

          5  tenants that they have to remediate. It is twice as

          6  illegal to tell tenants they should do it with a wet

          7  mop and a wet rag and don't have to hire

          8  professional remediators, because as that OSHA

          9  letter said, you must assume that since the Trade

         10  Center had asbestos in it, any dust has asbestos.

         11                 And the testing, we don't need to

         12  test the dust, by the way, if you know there's dust

         13  in the trade center, in an apartment, you should

         14  know it should be remediated. The testing is to

         15  determine whether it's there, because the moment

         16  it's there you know it has asbestos and a lot of

         17  other things in it.

         18                 And I urge the Council to push the

         19  Mayor and the Administration to push the federal

         20  government to undertake a systematic program of

         21  testing and remediation, and if they don't do that

         22  promptly the City should undertake it and then seek

         23  to get reimbursed by the federal government, because

         24  it's not something that we can waste six, seven

         25  months of having a nice federalism dispute.
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          2                 I think it's very clear that it's the

          3  federal government's and EPA's responsibility, and I

          4  think we'll prevail on that in the end, but it

          5  should be done whether they admit it or not.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you so

          8  much, Congressman Nadler. Thank you so much.

          9                 I just would like to point out that

         10  there is a representative of the Mayor's Office now

         11  in the room; is that correct? It is my understand

         12  that there is a representative of the Mayor's Office

         13  who is currently in the room. Okay, could that

         14  person just put their hand up, so we can see who

         15  they are? The representative of the Mayor's Office,

         16  just put your hand up. Okay.

         17                 And we have some of the agencies also

         18  represented as well, right? There's a gentleman from

         19  -- where is the gentleman over here from?

         20                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: DOH.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So the Health

         22  Department is here.

         23                 DDC? Do we have someone from DDC

         24  here? I'm just going sort of in order.

         25                 DDC? Anyone from DDC here?
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          2                 DEP?

          3                 Any other City agency representative,

          4  other than DOH? But we do have the person from the

          5  Mayor's Office, okay.

          6                 Thank you very much, Congressman. I

          7  greatly appreciate your testimony, and, you know,

          8  thank you for staying here as long as you had.

          9  You've given us a lot of information that we can do

         10  a lot of good things with. So, it was -- your hours

         11  and hours were certainly well spent. Sorry we

         12  couldn't get you on earlier, and we thank you for

         13  waiting so long.

         14                 Please, by all means (applause.)

         15                 Now, with regard to FEMA perhaps

         16  picking up the bill for some of this, is this

         17  something -- have you heard that people are talking

         18  about that? Is that like in the rumor mill now, or

         19  have you approached them? What's your current sense

         20  of whether or not they --

         21                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I think it's

         22  probably going to change. I don't think anybody has

         23  told FEMA that they ought to do it.

         24                 I mean, what I've been trying to do

         25  over the last few months is to get EPA to
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          2  acknowledge it has the basic responsibility of doing

          3  all this, and I think it's clear from the law that

          4  it does. It took us until the Senate hearing to get

          5  them to respond at all, and they then responded by

          6  saying, well, we did the outdoor air and the City of

          7  New York took the lead, and since then we've done

          8  the research to show that that's not sufficient.

          9  It's a violation by EPA of something called the

         10  National Contingency Plan, which governs how they're

         11  supposed to respond to hazardous waste discharges,

         12  which this certainly was.

         13                 Now, by the way, some of the people

         14  testified this morning, I think, again, it may have

         15  been some of the federal people, that they were

         16  acting under the National Emergency -- the Federal

         17  Disaster Response Plan. That the Federal Disaster

         18  Response Plan said they were supposed to do certain

         19  things and they didn't have to do other things.

         20                 Well, the moment the Federal

         21  Emergency or Disaster Response Plan goes into

         22  effect, is declared by the President, which it was

         23  immediately, then by operation of law, the Emergency

         24  Contingency Plan goes into effect.

         25                 The Emergency Contingency Plan
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          2  governs the federal response to a hazardous material

          3  discharge. That mandates that EPA must take the lead

          4  and must take the lead in identifying and testing

          5  and remediation, and that they have clearly

          6  violated.

          7                 Now, it also says that they must

          8  immediately send an on-site coordinator, an OSC or

          9  several to the site to coordinate and direct what's

         10  going on. We know that immediately after September

         11  11th, quite a few OSCs from EPA descended on the

         12  City of New York.

         13                 They apparently were all pulled out

         14  in September, I think. And one of the things that we

         15  are asking in a letter that I sent to Administrator

         16  Whitman, and we keep learning more and more about

         17  this, I wasn't an expert on this six months ago, one

         18  of the things that we asked in this letter, was how

         19  many OSCs came to New York; what were their names;

         20  when were they removed; why were they removed; who

         21  made the decision that they be removed? Because at

         22  that point when they were removed, which we think

         23  they were but can't confirm, that was apparently the

         24  moment when EPA decided that for some reason they

         25  were going to behalf differently than they behaved
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          2  at every other hazardous waste discharge site and

          3  not do what they were supposed to do, and the moment

          4  that they decided on the course of conduct that

          5  apparently violates the law.

          6                 Now, I asked the president yesterday,

          7  when the delegation met with him, because he told

          8  us, we had a meeting with him before that press

          9  conference in the Rose Garden, that Lovefest, I

         10  brought this up to the President and the Mayor and

         11  the Governor were in the room at the time, as was

         12  the entire Delegation, Congressional Senate

         13  Delegation of New York, and I said, you know, we

         14  have this major problem with cleaning with indoor

         15  air, I just said I think EPA has done an okay job

         16  with qualifications on the outdoor air, but on the

         17  indoor air it has completely dropped the ball, and

         18  we need a major program here, and I said to the

         19  President, the EPA hasn't done its job, and I would

         20  urge you to have someone look into this. He said he

         21  would. We'll see what that means.

         22                 I also asked if the grant of a new --

         23  there was several billion dollars more, I forget the

         24  exact amount, of FEMA money announced yesterday, and

         25  was that flexible enough to be used for this
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          2  purpose? And I think the answer is, yes, although

          3  we're not sure of that yet.

          4                 So, we should look for the source of

          5  funding over there, and the City should certainly be

          6  pressing the federal government to act on this.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          8  much, Congressman.

          9                 I know that one of the other members

         10  of this panel has a pressing time issue. Dr. Levin,

         11  I would like to call upon you to make your testimony

         12  now. We have to get the doctor on, but we would very

         13  much appreciate, Congressman, if you could stay for

         14  this, that would be great. It's just that we have to

         15  get the doctor on, otherwise he has to leave in

         16  minutes.

         17                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I can stay a

         18  little bit longer.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Sorry

         20  about that.

         21                 Doctor, could you please proceed.

         22  Identify yourself for the record and present your

         23  testimony.

         24                 DR. LEVIN: Thanks very much for

         25  accommodating to my terrible schedule.
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          2                 I'm Dr. Steven Levin, and I'm Medical

          3  Director of the Mount Sinai Irving Selikoff Center

          4  for Occupational and Environmental Medicine.

          5                 We're a state-funded occupational

          6  medicine center. We're set up by the State

          7  Legislature to evaluate workers who have been

          8  exposed to hazardous materials, and especially to

          9  prevent exposures that give rise to occupational

         10  disease. And since September 11th we've seen now

         11  over 300 workers, and workers who are at or near

         12  Ground Zero, or people who reoccupied office space

         13  in the immediate vicinity of Ground Zero, and very

         14  few community residents.

         15                 And it's really on the basis of some

         16  of this clinical experience that I base my remarks.

         17                 I think Councilman Stewart asked a

         18  very specific question before, and I thought the

         19  response to it by the previous panel was confusing

         20  at best.

         21                 The fact is that workers did not

         22  receive basline examinations. Workers did not

         23  receive any kind of examinations since they time

         24  that they either worked or volunteered at Ground

         25  Zero, and certainly those construction workers, who
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          2  have been involved in Ground Zero response and

          3  removal of debris, have not gotten medical

          4  evaluation. I think it's a missed opportunity, both

          5  to protect them and to learn something about the

          6  consequences of these exposures.

          7                 We have out of our own resources at

          8  Mount Sinai, very limited resources, by the way,

          9  seen just a little over 100 iron workers who

         10  responded during the first few days following the

         11  September 11th attack.

         12                 What we found, we examined them

         13  clinically. We did careful histories, we did

         14  physical examinations, we did breathing tests on

         15  them, and what we found was very striking.

         16                 Number one, none of them had been

         17  examined before through any systematic program.

         18                 Number two, well over half of these

         19  individuals continued five months later to have

         20  cough, shortness of breath, chest tightness, the

         21  symptoms that go on, which occur as a result of a

         22  significant inhalation of respiratory irritants.

         23                 The fact that somewhere in the

         24  ballpark of two out of three of these individuals

         25  had persistent psychological distress is another
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          2  important public health issue but is probably not

          3  the focus here.

          4                 I think what we learned from the

          5  clinical assessment of these ironworkers tells us a

          6  great deal about what some of the hazards were in

          7  the short term, as a consequences of the intense

          8  exposures that occurred at and near Ground Zero.

          9                 Now I want to get to some of the

         10  specific issues that have been raised before.

         11                 There is clearly asbestos present in

         12  the household and office debris, and settled dust.

         13  Everyone understands that, it's unevenly

         14  distributed, but in some cases it exceeds the one

         15  percent threshold. But it should be understood that

         16  there is no health risk basis for that one percent

         17  figure, and we're talking about the amount of

         18  asbestos in bulk samples, not what's in the air,

         19  when one takes a bulk sample, dust sample, or debris

         20  sample, we look at how much asbestos is in there by

         21  weight, one percent is the amount that requires that

         22  it be handled as an asbestos-containing material, it

         23  has nothing to do with whether it may pose a health

         24  risk.

         25                 It's true that the lower the amount,
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          2  the less likely that there's going to be a dose that

          3  will cause health harm, but certainly one can be

          4  exposed to .5 percent asbestos in bulk if it gets

          5  into the air over a long period of time, that

          6  carries with it its own risk, and really it's a

          7  matter of how much fiber gets into the lung, whether

          8  the source has half a percent or ten percent, and I

          9  think there's a great deal of confusion about this

         10  one percent threshold, as if anything below that is

         11  a safe material. It's never been based on the issue

         12  of human health risk.

         13                 But we know that this stuff contains

         14  asbestos. That's been demonstrated. And we know that

         15  the asbestos-related cancer risk is proportionate to

         16  dose.

         17                 Now, Dr. Steve Markowitz is going to

         18  talk in just a little while about the special risk

         19  that clean-up workers have, and that's an important

         20  public health concern, it goes well beyond what an

         21  individual apartment owner or office worker is

         22  likely to encounter. These are people who have been

         23  working day in and day out cleaning up these

         24  apartments and offices, often without respiratory

         25  protection, without information about the risks that
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          2  they're encountering, and this is a public health

          3  malpractice.

          4                 Now, I want to talk just for a moment

          5  about individual household residents, or officer

          6  workers who may have cleaned up improperly. Because

          7  we know that it occurred. People got bad advice,

          8  some people felt that they had to do something, they

          9  were reoccupying their residential space, it was

         10  littered with dust, they had to do something, there

         11  was no FEMA money available to them, and some of us

         12  have been pushing now for months since October that

         13  FEMA monies be made available, so a systematic

         14  clean-up could be provided so that people didn't

         15  have to take the burden on themselves. Not many

         16  people have the 5,000 to 10,000 it might cost to

         17  clean up an apartment.

         18                 Nevertheless, no monies were

         19  available, some people did do it, and some people

         20  did it incorrectly. By the way, wet methods are

         21  better than dry methods, and respiratory protection

         22  will protect up to a point. Those who did it

         23  incorrectly, that horse is out of the barn,

         24  so-to-speak, I don't think should be haunted by fear

         25  that they and their children are likely to develop

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            266

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  an asbestos-related cancer. That is a mistake and

          3  understanding of the risk. We know that there is

          4  some increase in risk. It's a small increase in

          5  risk. The longer the exposure goes on, the more of

          6  increase in risk. We know this from studying the

          7  household residents, the family members of asbestos

          8  workers. That asbestos remains in that household

          9  that the workers brought home for 25 years and more.

         10  There is a small increase in risk of cancer that

         11  we've seen among these household residents, family

         12  members of these asbestos workers. Their dose was

         13  considerably higher, but the risk was small.

         14                 I don't think people should be

         15  tyrannized by fear because they've already made the

         16  unfortunate mistake of cleaning up in a way that

         17  wasn't appropriate.

         18                 There are special worries we have

         19  about children. There's no denying that. Children

         20  are closer to the floor where the source of the

         21  contamination is.

         22                 Children also have a longer lifetime

         23  ahead of them in which the cancer risk can express

         24  itself, and that's something important for

         25  mesothelioma where the risk doesn't stay steady over
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          2  time, it actually increases with time. So, we worry

          3  about that, and that's why clean-up is necessary.

          4                 Now, even if it had been done

          5  inadequately before, a proper clean-up should be

          6  done now.

          7                 But there's been a great deal of

          8  focus on asbestos and I think that there are other

          9  materials present in that settled dust that are of

         10  more immediate short-term health concern. There is

         11  concrete dust, which has already been talked about,

         12  as highly alkaline, in other words it's corrosive

         13  when it hits the mucus membranes and the linings of

         14  the airways. All the respiratory disease that's been

         15  found in the firefighters and been found in the iron

         16  workers, and there haven't been very many people

         17  studied so far, besides those two groups, those

         18  respiratory conditions are, in my opinion are

         19  largely the result of inhaling these irritant

         20  materials like concrete dust, like fiberglass. By

         21  the way, asbestos is unfortunately not very

         22  irritating, which is why workers can work around it

         23  comfortably without being irritated in the way they

         24  are when they're around fiberglass.

         25                 These irritant materials have
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          2  provoked very significant respiratory problems

          3  ranging from sinusitis to laryngitis and new onset

          4  asthma, we've seen it among the patients who have

          5  come to our clinical center, and when this material

          6  is stirred up in the household, it poses the risk of

          7  developing not just long-term cancer risk, which

          8  we've just discussed but in immediate short-term

          9  risk, especially for people who already have

         10  sinusitis, already have asthma, or chronic

         11  bronchitis and we know asthma is a problem that's

         12  very prevalent in urban centers, including New York

         13  City.

         14                 Therefore, if the resources are made

         15  available, and I think there are some encouraging,

         16  there is encouraging evidence that in fact FEMA may

         17  come up with money, professional clean up is

         18  necessary, and professional clean-up where the

         19  workers are protected.

         20                 I can tell you that the so-called

         21  professional clean-up that has been done thus far,

         22  hasn't protected the workers, nor has it protected

         23  anybody else in the area where the work is being

         24  done.

         25                 You need to isolate these clean-up
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          2  projects. You have one area of the building that's

          3  been cleaned up, if you don't isolate another area

          4  that's undergoing remediation, that dust will

          5  spread. So there are appropriate methods that are

          6  well prescribed.

          7                 There has been discussion of testing

          8  before, during, after clean-up.

          9                 I'm of the view that you shouldn't

         10  test every apartment. If there's dust, assume it

         11  contains asbestos and do the clean-up, but do the

         12  testing afterwards that would indicate that you've

         13  in fact done the job that needed to be done, and

         14  that means aggressive monitoring.

         15                 Monitoring under what's called "still

         16  conditions," air monitoring under still conditions

         17  will not answer the question. You need to use

         18  leaf-blowers, something that will suspend this

         19  material in the air to really get an idea of which

         20  human activity will stir up, and what kind of

         21  exposures are really likely to occur.

         22                 I think that one could do sampling at

         23  increasing distances from Ground Zero, until you get

         24  to levels of asbestos as a good indicator, fibrous

         25  glass is another good indicator, the same as the
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          2  Upper West Side of Manhattan. We know that no place

          3  is entirely clean. If you can get it as clean as the

          4  places up in the 80s and 90s on the west side of

          5  Manhattan, you've probably done a pretty good job of

          6  restoring things to the way they were before

          7  September 11th.

          8                 The question that was closed by the

          9  resolution that I believe was part of the discussion

         10  today, was should there be an agency set up to

         11  oversee this or not. I'm not sure that an additional

         12  agency would do the trick. I think there should be a

         13  responsible agency with authority and

         14  accountability, I personally think the New York City

         15  Department of Health is the place where it belongs,

         16  that falls within their general mission, they have

         17  been deeply involved with the issue thus far, and I

         18  do think we have a new administration, and I know

         19  that there's a new commissioner and I think we have

         20  reason to believe that there will be a serious

         21  attempt to address these issues in ways that were

         22  not addressed before.

         23                 I think if the City Department of

         24  Health is provided with the resources and with

         25  guidance from people with experience, that they are
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          2  situated in a way that can manage such a program.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 If I could, I just would like to ask

          6  the Congressman if you have any further remarks to

          7  make, or whether or not there are any members of the

          8  Committees here that want to ask questions of the

          9  Congressman?

         10                 DR. LEVIN: I'm a doctor, not a

         11  Congressman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We --

         13                 DR. LEVIN: Oh, both of us.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We certainly

         15  wanted to get the benefit of your testimony, and

         16  people may not have any more questions, you know,

         17  for the Congressman, but out of deference to him, I

         18  want to see if we can, you know, get what we can

         19  from him, and then move on to the other panelists.

         20  And if you can stay, that's fine, if you can't I'm

         21  very, very grateful for you staying here all these

         22  number of hours. I do appreciate that.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I would just

         24  clarify that the resolution said that the City

         25  should establish or designate, which would allow for
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          2  the possibility of designating the Department of

          3  Health.

          4                 DR. LEVIN: Yes, I was opting for the

          5  second.

          6                 Thank you very much for the

          7  opportunity to testify.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great.

          9                 Okay, thank you, Doctor.

         10                 Does anybody have anything further

         11  for Congressman Nadler?

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

         14  Gerson.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Congress

         16  Member, I take it your advice -- I know we share the

         17  belief that the EPA should undertake the role of the

         18  clean-up. That is, I hear your testimony, your

         19  advice to the City and to the Council would be that

         20  if EPA does not step up to the plate, the City

         21  should go ahead and submit the bill, and you feel

         22  there is a good chance that we'll get the bill paid?

         23                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I think

         24  ultimately probably. I can't guarantee that. But I

         25  think with FEMA and the Congressional Delegation, if
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          2  the City makes that a priority.

          3                 If it just sends a bill but uses the

          4  FEMA money available for other things, then no. But

          5  if it makes it a priority and says we want FEMA

          6  money for this, it could get more FEMA money or even

          7  use the FEMA money that was made available as of

          8  yesterday.

          9                 It's a question of priorities, I

         10  think it's a very high priority, and I think it's

         11  got to be done.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And if I

         13  followed your mathematical analysis correctly, the

         14  total for the testing and the clean-up, rough

         15  estimates came to rounded up, could come to around

         16  $2 billion, which is 20 percent of the 20 billion.

         17                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: That is so rough

         18  a back of the envelope calculation. All that's

         19  valuable for, say it's probably closer to 2 billion

         20  than to 20 billion or to 2 million. It's just the

         21  order of magnitude. Because we don't know how many

         22  apartments have to be cleaned. We don't know if it's

         23  10,000 or 100,000.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: In Washington

         25  World, though, 2 billion, or the President is
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          2  talking about 20 billion, that's not --

          3                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: No, I think it's

          4  reasonable and doable, even if it came to that

          5  amount of money.

          6                 Now, the Mayor, the Governor, may

          7  have other things in mind for the FEMA money in that

          8  $20 billion, and maybe those things are important

          9  too, and we don't know some of the priorities yet,

         10  or at least I don't. And it's conceivable the City

         11  is reluctant to ask for that. But the point is, I

         12  think that's what we're talking about.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And my last

         14  question. From your testimony and your investigation

         15  -- excuse me. From the hearing which you conducted

         16  not too long ago, and from your other work in

         17  investigation, are you aware of any precedents that

         18  we could cite where -- obviously this is

         19  unprecedented, but any situations where there was

         20  the type of systematic clean-up that we're talking

         21  about?

         22                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Yes. And I think,

         23  first of all, it wasn't my hearing, it was the

         24  Ombudsman hearing, and Mr. Calfe (phonetic) here is

         25  the -- I invited the Ombudsman to come into New
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          2  York, and he and Mr. Kaufman held this hearing two

          3  weeks ago, and holding another hearing on Monday.

          4                 Yes, the EPA has done this. In fact,

          5  in my testimony I said that they seem to have

          6  challenged their policy for New York because

          7  elsewhere they have done the indoor testing and the

          8  remediation where was a hazardous waste discharge,

          9  and Mr. Kaufman and his testimony in response to

         10  questions can probably cite chapter and verse.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Congress Member

         14  Nadler, I mean this is slightly a speculative -- I'm

         15  just interested in your opinion, and obviously the

         16  question I'm going to ask you, you can't know for a

         17  fact, but the EPA, is it your sense that you think

         18  they have mishandled things because it's simply

         19  they're overwhelmed? Is there malice involved? Do

         20  you know what I mean? I'm trying to -- and perhaps

         21  it doesn't matter but I'm trying to figure in a

         22  sense --

         23                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I don't know, and

         24  I don't know that it does matter.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.
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          2                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I have been

          3  trying to say -- I mean, we just issued this white

          4  paper which goes into chapter and verse on all the

          5  misdeeds of the EPA and how it broke the law and so

          6  forth and so on, but the point is not to prosecute

          7  the EPA.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

          9                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I'm not

         10  interested in that.

         11                 One of the reporters says downstairs,

         12  so are you saying that Christie Whitman should

         13  resign? I said, no, I'm not saying that. If she

         14  resigned the replacement might do exactly the same

         15  thing. I don't care. The key is to get them to do

         16  what they should do and what needs to be done.

         17                 Now, my opinion that I think is

         18  changing, because we just learned in the last few

         19  days that they had, at least we think we learned in

         20  the last few days they had a whole group of OSCs,

         21  on-site coordinators here, and they seemed to have

         22  been pulled out. Now, if that is true, then they

         23  went into the automatic normal response modes for

         24  the emergency -- what do you call it, for the

         25  National Contingency Plan. And then somebody made a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            277

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  deliberate decision to change, and we want to know

          3  who that somebody was and why.

          4                 Now, if that is true, I originally

          5  thought, well, they were overwhelmed -- if that is

          6  true, then that means that someone decided, gee,

          7  this is going to cost a lot of money, or we don't

          8  want to get into this, let the City do it, because

          9  this could cost a lot of money, and that may be the

         10  reason, I don't know. It's clearly speculative.

         11                 But again, the key is they are

         12  mandated by law to do most of this, and -- well,

         13  they're mandated by law to do most of it, I'm not

         14  sure they are mandated to do all of it, but it's

         15  certainly well within their statutory authority to

         16  do all of it, and they certainly should and we ought

         17  to push them to.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And we don't

         19  know, they have not yet responded about whether they

         20  did in fact --

         21                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: No, we just sent

         22  that letter today.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         24                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I can't answer

         25  that kind of response.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. Are you

          3  seeing a change in the City's response since the new

          4  Administration, or is it too early to tell?

          5                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Well, I think in

          6  all fairness, Commissioner Miele is gone, and I'm

          7  glad for that. But that was only as of I think two

          8  days ago. The new Commissioner, Chris Ward, whom I

          9  have worked with, and against, on many different

         10  issues in his other positions over the years, took

         11  office yesterday I think, or today, and you can't

         12  comment on their response yet.

         13                 I certainly hope that they will have

         14  a better response, and I hope that when we look back

         15  on this we'll say that to the extent the City did

         16  not respond to this crisis properly, it was the

         17  outgoing administration, that the new one, once it

         18  got its feet on the ground and its bearings and its

         19  new commissioners in place, responded properly.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: One of the

         21  things just on the City level, which I didn't get to

         22  ask the agencies, and I'll follow up on, which I

         23  just want to put out because we may in fact need to

         24  enlist your office or others for help -- on this hot

         25  line, which is probably a very useful thing, I'm
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          2  concerned that they're assigning from DEP and DOH

          3  might be existing staff that they'll be taking away

          4  from other functions which could relate to World

          5  Trade Center or other important environmental or

          6  health issues.

          7                 So, we'll let you know what we find

          8  out.

          9                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I'm concerned

         10  that the staff, the use of that hot line -- I'm

         11  sorry -- the usefulness of that hot line will depend

         12  on what people who are staffing it say.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Absolutely.

         14                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: If they're going

         15  to continue to tell people, well, wipe up the dust

         16  with a wet mop and a wet rag, the hot line is going

         17  to be worse than useless.

         18                 The real question is, is the City

         19  Administration at this point, and they really have

         20  to decide this, the Administration has to take a

         21  hard look at this subject and make a decision, are

         22  they going to change policy from what went before,

         23  really address this issue, understand that we have

         24  to have these apartments tested and properly,

         25  professionally -- and not just apartments, every
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          2  time I say that you should also read small

          3  businesses.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

          5                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Properly tested

          6  and remediated by government or under the direct

          7  supervision of government.

          8                 You can't have a self-certification

          9  where the building owner says I took care of it, you

         10  know. If you've been to a tenant court, you know how

         11  that works, but the Administration has to make a

         12  direct decision to do this, and then start

         13  implementing that decision.

         14                 Part of which can be pressuring the

         15  federal government to do it, part of it can be

         16  telling DEP to do this, and DOH to do that. Or it

         17  can continue on the prior course, and that would be

         18  terrible.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: This hot line,

         20  you raise a very good point in that its usefulness

         21  is based on what they say, and this hot line may

         22  actually provide the Council with an opportunity to

         23  do a series on the hot line, you know, what

         24  oversight hearings, what is the training protocol

         25  they're going to use; what is the qualifications for
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          2  being assigned to it? What are the materials that

          3  people are going to work off of, et cetera, et

          4  cetera. It seems like this could be really an

          5  opportunity for the Administration to indicate that

          6  they are going to change, and, also, if that's not

          7  the case, which would be great to have in the light

          8  of day, and if that's not the case for us, since

          9  it's just starting, to have, with your help, a big

         10  impact in making sure what people are trained to say

         11  and the materials that they're working off of are,

         12  in fact, not just legal, but the best that could be.

         13                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: But useful.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         15                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Let me say, I

         16  mean, the Council can play a real role in pushing

         17  the Administration through legislation, through

         18  resolution, wherever you push, through the budget,

         19  through whatever mechanisms the Council uses to push

         20  a mayoral administration into basically changing its

         21  policy and doing the right things and doing it as

         22  quickly as possible.

         23                 You know there really are I think

         24  three types of different problems that we're dealing

         25  with.
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          2                 One is in one sense past tense.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

          4                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: If police

          5  officers or fire officers or other first responders

          6  didn't use the proper respiratory equipment and so

          7  forth, that's done. That's done.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

          9                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: If they weren't

         10  properly protected, it's over. The health

         11  consequences are there. We're going to have to deal

         12  with that, but there's nothing the City, the State

         13  or the federal government can do about that now.

         14                 The second is the outdoor air, which

         15  is basically I suspect not too much of a problem

         16  except for the area, for the areas close to where

         17  they're being recontaminated because of the barge

         18  and the trucks, et cetera.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         20                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: And that should

         21  be looked at because that's a continuing problem.

         22                 But the third is the indoor air,

         23  which, again, in some apartments is so concentrated

         24  that we just can't have people in there until, but

         25  that's rather few, I suspect. In most apartments, in
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          2  most spaces, this has just got to be done on a

          3  systematic basis in the next few months and you can

          4  prevent most of the harm from that, if we do it in a

          5  reasonable time period now.

          6                 And as I said before, I hope the City

          7  doesn't use a task force to waste a few more weeks

          8  or months.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         10                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: It should look, a

         11  task force that looks at the testimony at this

         12  hearing, that looks at the testimony of the Senate

         13  hearing, the Ombudsman hearings, that calls in some

         14  experts and scientists and says, and spends a week

         15  or two doing this and then comes out and says, okay,

         16  this is our new policy, that would be a very useful

         17  task force.

         18                 But not if it's going to be a

         19  bureaucratic task force that's going to hash this

         20  out for three or four months.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And also, I

         22  would just add that not only does that

         23  expeditiously, like you said, but then remains in a

         24  way that would increase coordination to make sure,

         25  you know, that whatever the recommendations are
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          2  implemented quickly, you know, and effectively,

          3  which sometimes doesn't happen even in the best,

          4  less trying times --

          5                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: The interesting

          6  thing is that the National Contingency Plan, which

          7  is in the CERCLA law, I forget what CERCLA stands

          8  for, it's federal law dealing with hazardous waste

          9  discharges, is designed specifically for that, and

         10  lays out a precise set of things that are supposed

         11  to be done and by whom, starting with designating an

         12  on-site coordinator to coordinate everything to make

         13  sure that testing and remediation and dealing with

         14  it is done, specifically for unforeseen

         15  catastrophes.

         16                 It's a law written for unforeseen

         17  catastrophies and written I think very well, and I

         18  had nothing to do with it, I wasn't there. But when

         19  it was written, it was written very well, and when

         20  it's used properly it works very well.

         21                 I suspect that the City might take a

         22  look at that and designate not a task force but some

         23  official, whether that's the head of DEP or the head

         24  of DOH, or a special assistant to the Mayor or

         25  somebody to be in charge of knocking heads together,
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          2  making sure everybody does what they're supposed to

          3  do and that they get a plan together and implement

          4  it.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, it's a

          6  very good suggestion, and I just want to say we will

          7  definitely be back in touch with your office on some

          8  of these more targeted follow-up hearings around the

          9  hot line and some of the other matters that were

         10  raised.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         14  much, Congressman.

         15                 I've had the opportunity to kind of

         16  leaf through your white paper during the time you've

         17  been answering questions, and it looks like a really

         18  tremendous effort. I know it's going to be a

         19  valuable tool for us all as we go forward, and we're

         20  very grateful to you for putting this together and

         21  to your staff, I'm sure they worked so hard on it.

         22                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Especially the

         23  staff.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you, Congressman.
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          2                 Does anyone here on the Council have

          3  anything further for Congressman Nadler? No, okay.

          4                 So, we would like the other witnesses

          5  to identify themselves for the record and proceed

          6  with their testimony.

          7                 Dr. Chatfield. Please step up to the

          8  mic. Give us your name for the record, and proceed

          9  with your testimony.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And, Doctor,

         11  not everyone is as aware of your background as I've

         12  been fortunate to be, so if you can give us just a

         13  very brief encapsulated version of your experiences

         14  as they're relevant.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, if I could

         16  before that. Pardon me, I was remiss in one area. I

         17  would like to point out that we've been making

         18  notice of those people who aren't here, I think it's

         19  important to make notice of people who are here. We

         20  do have at least one representative of the federal

         21  EPA, who is here. So, thank you, Barry, for staying.

         22  And Mary Ellen Chris, from State DEC, the Regional

         23  Director for Region II of DEC. So, our thanks to

         24  Region II DEC for keeping their top person here for

         25  the entire hearing.
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          2                 Thank you very much. I just want to

          3  recognize those folks that are staying behind to

          4  hear all of this good testimony.

          5                 Doctor, I'm sorry. Please proceed.

          6                 DR. CHATFIELD: Dr. Eric John

          7  Chatfield. I live in Canada, and over the past 30

          8  years or so I've made a career out of developing

          9  analytical methods for asbestos, and when September

         10  11th happened, I was in fact due to be going to

         11  another International Standard meeting in Germany. I

         12  had to cancel that, of course, because nobody was

         13  flying --

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: If you could

         15  just move the microphone a little closer.

         16                 DR. CHATFIELD: Because nobody was

         17  flying at that point to Germany, and on that very

         18  day I received a phone call from Alan Gerson, who

         19  asked me if I could give some assistance in New York

         20  City with regard indoor air quality in apartments in

         21  the vicinity of the World Trade Center.

         22                 I got in my car and drove down and I

         23  met on the way, on the Pennsylvania Turnpike, a

         24  gentleman by the name of John Kaminski, who is an

         25  expert in the organics and metals area, which
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          2  complemented what I could do with asbestos.

          3                 We dumped one of the cars and carried

          4  on to New York City, and met people here.

          5                 On the Tuesday night after the events

          6  of the September 11th, we were able to get into two

          7  apartment buildings. I should mention that initially

          8  I was asked to come and review some data, and having

          9  found that there wasn't any data, we decided we

         10  better make some measurements, and I'm grateful to

         11  some colleagues in the State of New Jersey

         12  Department of Health, who came over in their car

         13  with some air sampling pumps, and other kind of

         14  sampling equipment. And they stayed with us for the

         15  whole period and assisted with the sampling.

         16                 We got access to the Department

         17  building on Warren Street, and also another

         18  apartment building at 250 South End Avenue, which

         19  was really close to the Trade Center.

         20                 We moved in there with air sampling

         21  pumps. We did 250 South End Avenue first, and this

         22  was an apartment building in which the amount of

         23  dust was very high. In our report we put in two

         24  pictures where it was possible to photograph that it

         25  was there.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            289

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2                 And we found without trying, we

          3  achieved an air concentration of almost an

          4  occupational asbestos standard without any

          5  disturbance. In other words, we got something close

          6  to .1, it was actually about .085 fibers per cc of

          7  optical-sized fibers, and by that I mean the sizes

          8  of fiber that would be normally looked at by an

          9  optical microscope in doing evaluation of an

         10  occupational exposure. In other words, a phased

         11  contrast sized fiber.

         12                 All others who were in that apartment

         13  at the time found that we were in there for

         14  approximately three hours, we came out with a cough

         15  and throat irritation which I'm quite sure was the

         16  glass fiber and the mineral wool that was in there.

         17                 We also took some bulk samples of

         18  material to determine how much asbestos was in this

         19  material in that vicinity.

         20                 I took one sample off a window ledge,

         21  and another out at the back yard.

         22                 Then we moved on to the Warren Street

         23  apartment, which was about four blocks north of the

         24  World Trade Center, and in there we were able to

         25  again see the dust on the surfaces, and, again, we
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          2  did static air sampling, because by static I mean we

          3  did not do aggressive air sampling. We had no leaf

          4  blowers, and we didn't do leave blower activity. One

          5  of the reasons we wouldn't do that at that time was

          6  that we didn't know what the level of contamination

          7  was, so there are some legal implications to blowing

          8  dust around in someone else's apartment, because

          9  they may come back and say that you made it worse

         10  than it was initially.

         11                 So, we pretty well had to go in there

         12  and do what we will call passive air sampling, with

         13  the full knowledge that that is not the right way to

         14  assess what the conditions might be if someone comes

         15  in there and starts living in there again.

         16                 So, we did these air samples, and

         17  organic measurements and metal measurements were

         18  also made, but my part of it basically was the

         19  asbestos, and after we analyzed the samples we found

         20  that there were substantial asbestos concentrations

         21  in the air in all three apartments that we tested.

         22  Very high in 250 South End, and my opinion, and

         23  expressed in the report is that if someone went in

         24  there and began to use an ordinary vacuum cleaner or

         25  used dry-cleaning methods, then those concentrations
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          2  could perhaps rise even a factor of ten higher or

          3  more. But certainly we were already at an

          4  unacceptable level, and certainly unacceptable for

          5  anyone to be living there.

          6                 The dust concentrations on the

          7  surfaces were such that I'm quite sure we would

          8  generate fairly high concentrations, if we had done

          9  any disturbance, much higher than we actually found

         10  in fact.

         11                 Types of asbestos that we found, we

         12  found basically chrysotile asbestos, which Trade

         13  Center towers I had been involved in years before in

         14  the lawsuit, up to the 40th floor had chrysotile

         15  fireproofing, which contained approximately 20

         16  percent in it, and surprise to me was that we did

         17  find some vermiculite in the dust around the Trade

         18  Center, and we also found a little amacyte asbestos

         19  and we found a little bit of tremolite, actinolite

         20  asbestos.  Those were surprised to me, but I don't

         21  know where they came from, but the point is it was

         22  there.

         23                 The overall result of our

         24  measurements was that we made certain

         25  recommendations, and a key part of those
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          2  recommendations was that the apartment should be

          3  professionally cleaned before anyone moved back in,

          4  and that steps should be taken to prevent the

          5  apartment being recontaminated, because as fast as

          6  you remove it, you can do an excellent clean-up in

          7  an apartment, but then if somebody comes in, walking

          8  in it and on their feet, there it is on the carpet

          9  again, the owner has now by this time moved back in

         10  and begins to use the regular vacuum methods that

         11  they had always used.

         12                 So, you're in the position where

         13  you're recontaminating the property again.

         14                 We recommended the usual things, HEPA

         15  vacuum cleaners, wet wiping, these are all standard

         16  things, and one thing I did put in there was there

         17  need to establish a suitable reoccupancy standard.

         18                 Now, we're all aware of the AHERA

         19  regulations for school buildings, and there are 70

         20  structures per square millimeter criterion that was

         21  established and has been used extensively in the

         22  vicinity of New York City. That standard, like the

         23  standard that is used for defining an

         24  asbestos-containing material, the one percent that

         25  we've heard, neither of those standards are
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          2  health-based in any way whatsoever.

          3                 The AHERA standard was a cleanliness

          4  standard which said if you can find any asbestos,

          5  then it's not good enough, and that 70 structures

          6  per square millimeter in actual fact comes from the

          7  background contamination that we had on our filters

          8  in the 1987, that period of time. The filters that

          9  we used for air sampling at that time has some

         10  asbestos on them, and that was the upper limit, that

         11  contamination level.

         12                 So, what we're dealing with here is

         13  numbers which really have no meaning, and, frankly,

         14  I think in apartments in New York City, close to the

         15  Trade Center, we have furnishings, we have TV sets,

         16  we have microwave ovens, we have everything you can

         17  think of in the apartment, the dust will have gotten

         18  into all of those items, and I believe that if you

         19  went in, did a professional clean-up, and you went

         20  in and did a corsavare testing (phonetic) with leaf

         21  blowers, I think it will be extremely difficult to

         22  make apartments pass the AHERA standard, because the

         23  AHERA test, 70 structures per square millimeter is

         24  extremely stringent, and I think that we would have

         25  avoided at all costs, in fact, prior to September
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          2  11th, we would not have gone into any apartment and

          3  used aggressive air sampling methods, simply because

          4  we would have thought we would be blowing up so much

          5  dust, that we wouldn't be able to collect a valid

          6  sample anyway.

          7                 So, there are many reasons why I

          8  think personally that it will be very difficult to

          9  pass the AHERA test. That was at the back of my mind

         10  when I put in here in the report that a suitable

         11  reoccupancy standard should be established, and

         12  preferably something health-based, if it could be

         13  done.

         14                 So, I think that really forms the

         15  basis of my statement.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         17  much, Doctor. I greatly appreciate it, and we all

         18  greatly appreciate your coming here all the way from

         19  Canada to give us the benefit of your remarks. Thank

         20  you very much.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I think we're

         22  going to hear from Dr. Kaufman and then have

         23  questions, if that's okay with all of you. Thank

         24  you.

         25                 MR. KAUFMAN: First of all, I'm not a
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          2  doctor.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I'm promoting

          4  everyone today.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you could

          6  just state your name for the record and proceed with

          7  your testimony.

          8                 MR. KAUFMAN: Hubie Kaufman, and I'm

          9  an employee of the Environmental Protection Agency.

         10  I was one of the people who helped start the

         11  Environmental Protection Agency over 31 years ago,

         12  and I helped start our Solid and Hazardous Waste

         13  Program, back when it looks half the audience was

         14  barely just born.

         15                 Before that I was an officer of the

         16  United States Airforce, when most of the people who

         17  are now involved in these cases were draft dodgers,

         18  and I came in in the Nixon Administration, where we

         19  started a program to actually control the kinds of

         20  problems that we are facing right now, which is

         21  releases of hazardous materials.

         22                 The Superfund Program, which you've

         23  heard about, was the program, it was a Comprehensive

         24  Environmental Response and Liability Act that was

         25  ultimately passed in 1980, was my idea back in
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          2  1976.  Back in the early and mid-seventies I did

          3  investigations on hazard release sites around the

          4  country, including the Love Canal case, and Times

          5  Beach and all the other cases that have been talked

          6  about.

          7                 I've been probably the most

          8  experienced person in the area of investigating and

          9  remediating these kinds of cases.

         10                 One of the reasons why a national

         11  contingency plan was created is so that what's going

         12  on right now wouldn't go on anymore.

         13                 Back in the 1970s, for example,

         14  before EPA had authority and the federal government

         15  had authority to take control of these kinds of

         16  catastrophies, local and state governments were on

         17  their own.

         18                 They never had, and til this day

         19  still do not have the kind of money and expertise to

         20  deal with these kinds of catastrophies.

         21                 So, in memory of those colleagues of

         22  mine who either have passed away, or who no longer

         23  work at the Environmental Protection Agency and are

         24  retired, and some of them are in their eighties now,

         25  when we started this, I want to apologize to the
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          2  City Council and to the City of New York for the

          3  Environmental Protection Agency people who are there

          4  now on top, who have totally abrogated their

          5  responsibilities to the citizens of the United

          6  States and the citizens of New York, who were

          7  attacked most violently by enemies of this country

          8  and have told New York City you must go on your own

          9  and take care of yourselves. It's an unbelievable

         10  situation, and I never thought when I was an officer

         11  in the Airforce in the 1960s that the federal

         12  government would tell citizens of a city attacked by

         13  foreign enemies of America that you're on your own.

         14                 If I sound angry, it's only because

         15  my oath of office, when I was an officer in the

         16  Airforce, and now, as a civilian in the government,

         17  is to protect the United States of America from

         18  enemies foreign and domestic. The operative word in

         19  this hearing is domestic.

         20                 Now, the reason why the federal

         21  government set up a national contingency plan, for

         22  which I helped work on, was so where you have a

         23  catastrophe, whether it's the Exxon Valdez, whether

         24  it's two office buildings coming down, whether you

         25  have a massive release of hazardous material, if a
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          2  petroleum refinery blows up, is so there's a

          3  mechanism to go in place and fix it so that you

          4  don't have bureaucratic task forces playing games

          5  with each other, and have this money interest worry

          6  about his interest, and this money interest worry

          7  about their interest, and so you don't have the

          8  organized chaos that has been New York City for the

          9  last six months.

         10                 Let me tell you that we have good

         11  on-scene coordinators at the Environmental

         12  Protection Agency, and I know for a fact that as

         13  soon as those planes hit those Towers, on-scene

         14  coordinators hopped in their cars, from as far away

         15  as Kansas, to get to New York to do their job, to

         16  implement a national contingency plan so that six

         17  months later you don't have New York City residents

         18  being exposed to hazardous material and a bunch of

         19  politicians and bureaucrats forming task forces to

         20  decide what the hell to do about it.

         21                 That's not what we're supposed to do.

         22                 And if I sound angry, it's probably

         23  because I've been there, done that for over 30

         24  years. The reason we did this, the reason why

         25  Congress passed these laws, my God, Richard Nixon
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          2  and Gerald Ford, those Administrations pushed this

          3  stuff, and the President Carter pushed this stuff,

          4  and after the law passed, granted we had a little

          5  bit of a problem, I had to get my boss Regal Valle

          6  (phonetic) thrown in jail, but after that was done,

          7  the Reagan Administration came onboard and the Bush

          8  Administration was on board. We had an Exxon Valdez,

          9  a National Contingency Plan went into effect, and

         10  the United States government did not say you fishies

         11  up there in Alaska are on your own. We didn't say

         12  that. We implemented the program.

         13                 So, in other words, as far as the

         14  federal government is concerned, the fish in Alaska

         15  are more important than the citizens of New York

         16  City. That's outrageous.

         17                 Now, what can we do about it? What we

         18  can do about it is, if the federal government is not

         19  going to do its job, then I'll help you guys and

         20  I'll get some of the old timers to help you guys do

         21  the job for them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Kaufman,

         23  you're not saying that Stan Michels is old, are you?

         24  You're not saying that with that statement, are you?

         25                 MR. KAUFMAN: Well, I don't know --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I hope you

          3  didn't mean that.

          4                 MR. KAUFMAN: No, I'm talking about us

          5  old timers who have been around when these young

          6  punks tell you lies, lies, lies, and that's what you

          7  heard from some of these punks who were here before.

          8  And the reason I call them punks is because they're

          9  playing fast and loose with people's lives, with

         10  children's lives, with old people's lives.

         11                 They're more concerned about

         12  bureaucratic niceties than they are about the health

         13  of children who go to school next to a barge, and

         14  those schools get recontaminated. Now, that's

         15  outrageous.

         16                 And let's talk about whether it's

         17  important to find out why.

         18                 I agree with Congressman Nadler. I

         19  don't care why, but if we have to find out why to

         20  clean up New York, then by God I'm going to find out

         21  why. We've got investigative hearings, we had our

         22  first set of investigative hearings, notwithstanding

         23  the order of a federal judge, the Environmental

         24  Protection Agency refused to come, okay?

         25                 We've invited them again. I just
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